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Announcement of interim results

Interim special dividend at
HK3.4 cents per share paid

Announcement of annual results

Despatch of annual report to
shareholders

Closure of register of members for
ascertaining shareholders’ right to
attend and vote at annual general
meeting

Annual general meeting

26 August 2019

15 November 2019

30 March 2020

24 April 2020

9 June 2020 to
15 June 2020
(both days inclusive)

15 June 2020
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Nurturing
All-Round Talent
Expanding
Multi-Dimension Future
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to present the annual report
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

2019 represented a challenging year for us, and it has also been
a year where we could profoundly review our internal
management system and our crisis response capabilities. The
Sino-US trade war and the economic uncertainties in Europe had
affected the economy of Mainland China and Hong Kong, both of
which were recording slower growth. In the second half of the
year, months of social activities in Hong Kong had dealt a direct
blow to the retail and food and beverage industries. At the end of
2019, the unexpected and unforeseen outbreak of the novel
coronavirus disease had put the world in an even more precarious
situation.

Looking back on 2019, the Group had achieved many goals. First
of all, during the year, we focused on brand promotion — a
common goal for our store opening, sales strategies and overseas
expansion. The two self-owned brand restaurants commencing
operation in Mainland China are both set up in traffic hubs, one of
them located in an international airport for the first time, which
signifies that the Group’s brand has been more widely promoted
at home and abroad. Moreover, in anticipation of a more
challenging business environment in the future, a relatively
prudential development strategy has been adopted. In addition to
a more cautious plan for opening stores in Mainland China, this
year’'s marketing strategy was also focused on brand
enhancement. The marketing for dine in, takeout services,
electronic membership cards, and souvenirs are all aimed at
expanding brand awareness and strengthen customer base. In the
same year, we exported our self-developed brands by way of joint
venture, opening our first “Social Place” restaurant in Singapore;
meanwhile, we introduced overseas brands again by bringing
well-known Japanese restaurants brands to Hong Kong market,
so as to further expand the Group’s customer base.
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Chairman's Statement
FE®RE

We regard “nurturing positive minded and professional catering
talents” as our mission. During the year, apart from usual
technical trainings on data application, mental methodology for
service and management skill so as to uplift shop management
ability, and to create an energetic team with same morale and
goal, we had also held dozens of high-quality physical, spiritual
and loyalty training courses featuring “leadership with modesty”,
“filial piety” and “mental methodology for management”, which
benefited countless employees and peers, and improving the
quality of catering personnel from the aspect of cognitive model.
Our relentless efforts on continuous contribution of employee
training over the years enabled us to form a united team which
responded positively and swiftly amidst severe epidemic. | am
deeply proud of the team’s positive attitude to cope with
emergencies, its ability of taking risks as opportunities, and its
dedicated commitment to society.

At the end of January 2020, we took the initiative to temporarily
close stores in the mainland in support of the prevention and
control efforts of the Mainland China’s government. Nevertheless,
the entire team did not stand still, but instead stood fast on their
own posts. Adhering to the business philosophy of “operating for
others, devoting relentless efforts, and spreading happiness”, we
provided customers with services such as takeout family feast,
fresh seafood delivery and others, which allowed customers to
enjoy their meals at safe home environment, and strictly control
quality to provide contactless and safe delivery. By virtue of the
high standards of food safety that we have upheld over the years,
we were selected as a “guaranteed catering unit for epidemic
prevention and control” by many cities. At the onset of the
epidemic, we have formed a crisis management unit comprising
various core management of the operation, food production,
human resources, procurement and finance departments, which is
led by our Chief Executive Officer and responsible for all-round
strategic coordination and communication on the overall strategic
direction, practical contingent measures and emergency plans, as
well as consistently supervising their implementation. We
spontaneously organized volunteer teams in various regions to
support epidemic prevention works in communities and provide
meals to healthcare staff. We made donations to Hubei Province
to assist in medical material purchase, as our modest contribution
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to society. On the other hand, we are always mindful that talents
are the greatest asset of an enterprise, so we organized health
activities such as entertainment activities, talent competitions for
employees who were unable to return home, with a view to
ensuring they are being taken care of during the time of epidemic.
We also set up a “CEO Scholarship”, under which employees
were encouraged to continue learning in face of adversity. We
also vigorously promoted professional trainings, inspirative courses
on online platforms in preparation for a new start. During the
current special time, we, as members of Tang Palace, have
demonstrated limitless capabilities, as well as the Tang Palace
culture, which we take pride in, to the outside world.

2020 is bound to be more challenging than ever before. In the
face of the impact of the epidemic, | believe that our business will
definitely be back on track rapidly with the solid foundation of the
Group, the healthy financial condition and the capability of the
management team.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the management and staff for their contribution
during 2019. | hope to extend my special thanks to all staff for
their perseverance and dedication in fighting the epidemic during
2020. | would also like to express my sincere appreciation to all of
our supportive suppliers, business partners and government
authorities as well as our customers and shareholders for their
trust.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEBNWRIN

The prolonged Sino-US trade war from 2018 to 2019 has led to a
decline in the PRC’s economic growth. According to the
economic data of 2019 released by the National Bureau of
Statistics of the PRC, the PRC’s overall economic growth for the
year remained steady and was even higher than the global
economic growth rate, reaching an annual GDP increase of 6.1%
over the same period last year. However, compared with the
year-on-year growth of 6.3% in the first half of 2019 and 6.6% in
2018, the annual GDP growth for 2019 experienced a further
slowdown in the second half of the year, marking the slowest
pace of economic growth since the 1990s. According to the
analysis of Ning Jizhe, director of the National Bureau of Statistics
of the PRC, “there is a genuine downward pressure in the current
economy.” However, under various initiatives to stabilize economic
development, the PRC remains on pace to reach the overall
expected target. Based on the data in 2019, currently, there is still
a significant contribution from final consumption to economic
growth with a share of nearly 60%, albeit a level much lower than
over 76% in 2018. Coupled with the fact that the actual growth
rate of per capita disposable income of residents is, excluding the
price factor, lower than that of GDP, it is observed that the
consumer sentiment is affected by internal and external factors.
Nevertheless, domestic demand and consumption, in particular,
has played a fundamental role in the PRC’s economic
development as the primary driving force of the PRC’s economic
growth, of which the food and beverage industry is a significant
part. According to data from the National Bureau of Statistics, the
food and beverage income of the PRC reached RMB4,672.1
billion in 2019, representing an increase of 9.4% over the same
period last year, which was the same as the 9.4% year-on-year
increase in the first half of the year and slightly lower than the
9.5% year-on-year increase in 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In the face of the Sino-US trade war, Brexit and social
movements in Hong Kong, in 2019, we met all kinds of market
challenges arising from economic uncertainties with a cautious
and positive attitude and focuses on the following four major
directions: 1) to carefully examine investment plans; 2) to
strengthen and stabilize existing businesses; 3) to insist on
refining internal management as the long-term development
objective; and 4) to cultivate ethical and professional food and
beverage managerial staff. With continuous efforts to implement a
strategy that emphasizes such long-term development goals, the
Group was able to maintain stable business development. The
revenue for 2019 was RMB1,495.1 million, representing an
increase of RMB3.0 million or 0.2% as compared with the same
period in 2018. The Group’s development in the two new first-tier
cities in the PRC, Chengdu and Hangzhou, remained satisfactory.
Two local Chinese restaurants had entered their second year of
business operation and recorded a double-digit increase in
revenue, while the revenue of the second self-owned casual
dining restaurant in Chengdu also continued to rise. As at 31
December 2019, the Group was operating 45 self-owned
restaurants, 14 franchised restaurants and 14 joint venture
restaurants. During the year, the Group opened one Chinese
restaurant, one self-owned casual dining restaurants and six joint
venture restaurants and one franchised restaurant. As mentioned
in the year, the Group’s strategy in relation to expansion had
slightly changed. Except for the opening of a Chinese restaurant
in Beijing in the first half of the year, business development
consists mainly of casual dining restaurants, franchised
restaurants and joint venture restaurants with smaller investment
size. The Group’s reputation and management scale had given
itself confidence to pave the way for development in new
commercial districts, cities and countries. During the year, the
Group expanded our business into an international airport for the
first time by opening the first restaurant in Shanghai Pudong
International Airport. In addition, the Group partnered with
different F&B operators and opened six joint venture restaurants,
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEBNWRIN

including two “PappaRich” in Shenzhen and Taiwan and one
“Social Place”; the Group also successfully collaborated with an
experienced catering group in Singapore and opened one “Social
Place” restaurant there, thereby exporting its self-owned brand.
Apart from outbound development of our brands, the Group also
kept exploring overseas brands with potential, as we opened two
well-known Japanese restaurants in Hong Kong during the year.
In terms of franchised restaurants, we opened one “Pepper
Lunch” restaurant during the year. One Chinese restaurant and
two franchise restaurants were closed during the year after the
end of their lease period.

Stabilizing existing business was our chief mission for the year,
and the membership system implemented by the Group in
Chinese restaurants has always been an effective way to secure
customers and increase loyalty. In line with the rapid development
of e-commerce, after the launch of the electronic membership
cards in the second half of 2018, the Group successfully
converted existing members to electronic members in 2019. At
the same time, the Group attracted new members and
encouraged topping up through various measures, such as
reward points for registration, members’ day/birthday discount,
membership rewards, top up rewards and membership points
redemption. As at 31 December 2019, the number of the Group’s
members increased over 168% as compared with that in 2018,
and the amount of top-up value for the year reached RMB356.3
million, representing an increase of 16.5% as compared with that
in 2018. Stored value consumption for the vyear reached
RMB347.5 million, representing an increase of nearly 25% as
compared with the same period last year. Takeaway markets are
also important for the food and beverage industry in Mainland
China. As shown in the results for the year of 2019 issued by the
market leader Meituan Delivery, there was a year-on-year increase
of over 36% in its average number of food delivery transactions
per day, underlying a robust market demand. The Group
considered this an important means to achieve stable revenue.
Statistics show that major consumers of the takeaway market in
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Mainland China are young people at the ages of 20 to 35, and
rice and noodles are most consumed items. During the year, the
Group’s takeaway strategies were adjusted based on market
demands. In particular, we differentiate our products by adding
convenient takeaway menus for white-collar workers, such as
one-person meal boxes; and value for money dishes such as clay
pot rice that are different from others. Meanwhile, the Group also
concentrated its promotion resources on brand exposure and
advertising. On the other hand, it also improved packaging details
so as to highten customer experience and satisfaction. During the
year, the overall takeaway revenue increased by 18.8% over that
in the same period in 2018, and its proportion in the overall
revenue increased from 5.9% in 2018 to 7.0% in 2019.

During the year, the Group optimized and designed products for
sales in WeChat Mall, adding variety to family food products and
package portfolio. We also introduced set meals for one and
healthy food which were in rising demand in the current market.
In 2019, revenue from WeChat Mall increased significantly as
compared with that in 2018.

The Group’s casual dining business remained stable. As at 31
December 2019, the Group was operating a total of 12 self-
developed casual dining restaurants in Hong Kong, Shenzhen,
Shanghai and Chengdu. The overall turnover in Hong Kong was
influenced due to the social movement in the second half of
2019. In this circumstance, the overall revenue of casual dining
business for the year was RMB247.3 million, representing a slight
increase of 0.3% over the same period last year. The Group has
also been expanding “Social Place” to overseas markets in recent
years, with 3 joint venture outlets currently in operation in Taiwan
and Singapore. Other than exporting “Social Place”, the Group
also introduced different famous restaurant brands with
experienced partners who share the same operating philosophies
with us. Currently, we have joint venture specialty restaurants
from Malaysia, Korea, Japan and Sichuan, continuing to develop
diversely. During the year, the Group has a total of 14 joint
venture restaurants, including the exported “Social Place”.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEBNWRIN

The Group’s profit margin for the year was 62.7%, representing a
slight decrease of 0.4% over the same period last year, which
was mainly due to the impact of downward adjustment of value-
added taxes in Mainland China. Although the labor costs
continued to rise as a result of social policies made by the
Chinese government, which has become an unavoidable
challenge, the Group managed to stabilize labor costs by
continuously optimizing manpower structure, combining
procedures and positions, as well as making flexible shift
arrangements. The increase of labor costs has been narrowed to
5.4% in 2019 from 16.8% in 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group was operating 59
restaurants and 14 other restaurants under joint ventures. The
table below illustrates the number of restaurants by major brands,
together with the average spending per customer and percentage
of revenue to the Group:

No. of restaurants
as at 31 December

R+t=-ZA=+—-8%2

£BE¥A

Brand m 2018

—ET-N\F
Tang’s Cuisine EEE% 1 1
Tang Palace* B 31 30
Social Place BB 8 8
Canton Tea Room BB 4 4
Pepper Lunch HHIRE B 14 15

*

including Tang Palace Seafood Restaurant and Tang Palace
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Average spending Percentage of revenue
per customer contributed to the Group
as at 31 December as at 31 December
R+=ZH=+—-HB2 R+=ZHA=+—H
REAGHE HEREBREED L
2018 2018
—E-N\F —E-\F
RMB
AR
360.3 339.4 1.8% 1.8%
193.2 181.7 77.5% 76.7%
138.0 126.3 11.4% 11.8%
84.3 81.3 4.5% 4.7%
63.4 64.7 4.3% 4.5%

* BEEEBHEMLES



Management Discussion and Analysis

As mentioned above, the Group’s overall revenue for the year
increased by 0.2% to RMB1,495.1 million and the overall gross
profit margin has decreased by 0.4%. During the vyear, the
Group’s share award plan expense calculated at market price
amounted to approximately RMB6.1 million (2018: RMB8.1
million). By excluding this expense item, the Group’s percentage
of staff costs on revenue is 31.2% (2018: 29.5%). An overall
increase in staff costs was because the Group has adjusted its
employee wages and benefits according to relevant social policies
resulting in an increment of 1.7% in the Group’s percentage of
staff costs on revenue. During the year, majority part of rental and
related expenses were categorized as depreciation of right-of-use
assets and finance costs according to HKFRS 16. During the
year, percentage of depreciation of right-of-use assets on revenue
was 6.3% (2018: nil), percentage of finance costs on revenue was
1.9% (2018: 0.1%) and percentage of rental and related expenses
on revenue was 1.7% (2018: 9.4%). Except the relatively large
increase in percentage of staff costs on revenue and the changes
in percentage of rental and related expenses on revenue as a
result of the adoption of HKFRS 16, the remaining percentage of
other expenses on revenue have fluctuated within a narrow range
during the year. In which, percentage of depreciation of items of
property, plant and equipment, utilities and consumables costs
and other expenses on revenue are 3.2% (2018: 3.4%), 5.5%
(2018: 5.2%) and 6.0% (2018: 6.0%) respectively. During the year,
effective tax rate was 32.8% (2018: 30.3%), which included
withholding tax on dividend income of RMB5.3 million and
deferred tax expense of RMB2.1 million. The profit attributable to
owners of the Company for the year decreased by 20.7% from
RMB115.2 million to RMB91.3 million. The Group’s net profit
margin decreased from 7.8% for 2018 to 6.2% for the year.

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by RMB17.9 million from
RMB400.4 million as at 31 December 2018 to RMB382.5 million
as at 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Net cash of RMB260.5 million was generated from operating
activities during the year. Net cash used in investing activities
amounted to RMB62.9 million during the year, of which RMB59.3
million was related to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment. Net cash used in financing activities amounted to
RMB218.7 million for the year.

In response to the mass proliferation of the novel coronavirus
pneumonia (the “COVID-19”) epidemic in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and other countries (the “Epidemic”), most of
our dine-in services in our restaurants in PRC have been
temporarily suspended since late January 2020 and gradually
resume business since mid-March 2020. The Group continues to
monitor the development of the Epidemic and assess its impact
on the market situation and our business operation, diligently and
cautiously plan the resumption of services in accordance with
further notice from the local government.

The Group’s funding and treasury activities are managed and
controlled by the senior management. The Group maintained cash
and cash equivalents and time deposits, in aggregate, of
RMB496.5 million as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
RMB544.4 million). As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total
assets, net current assets and net assets were RMB1,142.6
million (31 December 2018: RMB893.1 million), RMB122.6 million
(81 December 2018: RMB272.6 million) and RMB429.0 million (31
December 2018: RMB502.6 million), respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank borrowings of
RMB80.0 million (31 December 2018: RMB79.2 million). The
gearing ratio (calculated as bank borrowings divided by total
equity) was 18.6% as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
15.8%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2019, the current ratio (calculated as current
assets divided by current liabilities) was 1.3 (31 December 2018:
1.7).

The directors are of the opinion that the Group has sufficient
working capital for the Group’s operations and expansion in the
near future.

The business operations of the Group’s subsidiaries were
conducted mainly in the Mainland China with revenues and
expenses of the Group’s subsidiaries denominated mainly in RMB.
The Group’s cash and bank deposits were denominated mainly in
RMB, with some denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Any
significant exchange rate fluctuations of Hong Kong dollars
against RMB as the functional currency may have a financial
impact to the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the directors considered the Group’s
foreign exchange risk to be insignificant. During the year, the
Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes.

The food and beverage industry is one of the industries which
reflect the economic environment most quickly. Having gone
through the rapid transformation in society and the enormous
change in the consumption mode of the food and beverage
industry over the years, the Group is more convinced that the
strategic thought of having internal management enhancement as
the long-term development goal is the pillar of the Group’s
progress. Facing unforeseen challenges gave an opportunity for
the Group to showcase its ability to react. The Group immediately
applied sophisticated management in every store and made the
best analyses and possible arrangement with operation data,
clients’ feedback and market information. Due to our emphasis on
internal refinement, the Group’s business in 2019 remained stable,
and was able to stabilize staff, quickly change strategy and
enhance training so as to prepare for a safe and orderly business
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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resumption in mid of outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19) during
the first quarter of 2020. Nuturing ethical and professional food
and beverage managers has been the goal of the Group. In
recent years, the Group introduced multi-disciplinary training to
develop multi-functional talents in terms of knowledge and skills,
management talents in terms of management problem solving and
humble and ethical talents in terms of morality and culture. These
internal and external trainings have established our corporate
culture and bound our team together, giving the Group the
confidence to move forward in our long-term development with
our growing management team.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had around 4,500
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group recognises the
importance of human resources to its success, therefore qualified
and experienced personnel are recruited for expansion of new
restaurants. Remuneration is maintained at competitive levels with
discretionary bonuses payable on a merit basis, which is in line
with industrial practice. Other staff benefits provided by the Group
include mandatory provident fund, insurance schemes, share
options, share awards and performance related bonus.

The Group’s capital commitment was approximately RMB3.0
million and RMB11.1 million as at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018, respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had pledged time deposits
of RMB80.0 million (31 December 2018: RMB80.0 million) for
banking facilities amounting to RMB80.0 million (31 December
2018: RMB79.2 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Material Acquisitions and Disposal of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Ventures

During the year, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the Company.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of
the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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Mr. YIP Shu Ming, aged 64, is one of the founders of our Group
and joined our Group in July 1992. Mr. Yip, also the chairman of
the Group, has been appointed as an executive director of the
Company since 25 March 2011. He is responsible for our Group’s
overall corporate operations, planning and business development.
Mr. Yip is also a director of certain subsidiaries of our Group. Mr.
Yip has rich experience in restaurant business. He worked as
general manager at Fortune City Restaurant, which operated in
Hong Kong, from 1986 to 1995. Mr. Yip is a honorary founding
president of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International
Association. Mr. Yip is a honorary president of The Hong Kong
Federation of Restaurants & Related Trades Limited. He is a part-
time consultant of the China Hotel Management Company Limited
and a permanent honorary committee member of The Chinese
General Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Yip is currently appointed as
the 14th CPPCC member of Changning District, Shanghai. Apart
from his interest in our Group, Mr. Yip is also one of the direct or
indirect owners of Meco Group and Dongguan Well Excellent, two
entities held by him for property investment and property leasing
businesses and the lessors under CCT Tenancy Agreements as
disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ Report —
Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual report.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. CHAN Man Wai, aged 65, is one of the founders of our
Group and has been with our Group since its establishment in
July 1992. Mr. Chan, also the vice chairman of the Group, has
been appointed as an executive director of the Company since 11
March 2010. He is responsible for our Group’s overall corporate
strategic development. Mr. Chan is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. He has rich experience in restaurant
business. Prior to the establishment of Meco Petrochemical
Limited in 1992, he co-owned and operated with others the
restaurants Fortune Flower Grill and Lounge and Fortune City
Restaurant in Hong Kong between 1983 and 1996. Apart from his
interest in the Group, Mr. Chan is also one of the direct or
indirect owners of Meco Group and Dongguan Well Excellent, two
entities held by him for property investment and property leasing
businesses and the lessors under the CCT Tenancy Agreements
as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ Report —
Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual report.

Mr. KU Hok Chiu, aged 74, is one of the founders of our Group,
and has been appointed as an executive director of the Company
since 25 March 2011. Mr. Ku joined our Group as a shareholder
of Meco Petrochemical Limited since May 1996. He is responsible
for our Group’s overall corporate strategic development. Mr. Ku
has rich experience in restaurant business. Prior to joining the
Group, he was one of the indirect owners of Datong Restaurant,
which operated in China, from 1985 to 1997.

Mr. Ku is also engaged in kitchen equipment business in China
through Chiu Kwun, involving manufacture, sale, installation and
maintenance of kitchen equipment and provision of consultancy
services related to kitchen equipment and kitchen layout. Apart
from his interest in the Group, Mr. Ku is also (ij one of the
shareholders of Meco Group and Dongguan Well Excellent
respectively, two entities held by him for property investment and
property leasing and the lessors under the CCT Tenancy
Agreements as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’
Report — Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual
report; and (i) the indirect sole owner of Chiu Kwun, an entity
held by him as the supplier and service provider as disclosed
within the related party transactions in the notes to the financial
statements in this annual report.
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Ms. WENG Peihe, aged 49, has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company since 25 March 2011 and has been the
chief executive officer of our Group since March 2000. She joined
our Group in January 1997 and worked as senior manager to
general manager from January 1997 to February 2000. Ms. Weng
is primarily responsible for overseeing our Group’s business
development, market development, human resources,
administration and logistics management. Ms. Weng has rich
experience in the restaurant industry. Prior to joining the Group,
she was engaged by Dragon Hotel, managed by New World
Hotels International in 1988.

Ms. Weng was awarded Excellent Female Entrepreneur in China
Hospitality Industry by the China Hotel Association in 2004. She
was elected as one of the 2009-2010 China Hotel Industry 100
Elites and awarded the Platinum Five-Star Medal by the China
Hotel Industry Annual Conference in March 2010. Ms. Weng was
awarded as one of the Outstanding Entrepreneur in China Brand
Development for 2010 jointly by China United Business News,
Brand Magazine, China Wisdom Engineering Association, China
Academy of Management Science, China International Brand
Academy and National High Technology Industry Brand Academy
in January 2011. Ms. Weng was also awarded as one of the
Outstanding Female Entrepreneur in Shanghai Restaurant Industry,
jointly by China Hotel Association and Shanghai Restaurant
Association in December 2011. Ms. Weng was awarded 100
Outstanding Female Entrepreneur by China Outstanding Female
Entrepreneur Association in 2012 and 2015. She was selected as
one of the Top Ten Female CEOs by Forbes China in 2018 and
was chosen as one of the Most Outstanding Women in
Commerce by Forbes China in 2019. Ms. Weng completed the
Certificate in Chinese Restaurant Management Course at the Hong
Kong Institute of Vocational Education in 2002 and the
International Business Management CEO course at the Center for
Overseas Academic and Cultural Exchanges, Tsinghua University
in November 2005, and completed the Executive Master of
Business Administration Program organized by Peking University
HSBC Business School in 2012.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. KWONG Chi Keung, JP (Justice of the Peace), aged 65, has
been appointed as an independent non-executive director,
chairman of remuneration committee, member of audit committee
and of nomination committee of the Company since 25 March
2011. Mr. Kwong is qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong,
England, Australia (Victoria) and Singapore. He is a senior partner
of Messrs. Sit Fung Kwong and Shum.

Mr. Kwong was an independent non-executive director of (i)
Sparkle Roll Group Limited (formerly known as Global Food
Culture Group Limited, Jade Dynasty Food Culture Group Limited
and Jade Dynasty Group Limited respectively) (Stock Code: 970),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
August 2002 to October 2007 and (ii) Hang Ten Group Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 448), a company which was listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange since October 2002 until it
was privatized and delisted with effect from 20 March 2012.

Mr. Kwong was a former Deputy Chairman of the Copyright
Tribunal of Hong Kong and a member of the Administrative
Appeals Board and Panel of Inland Revenue Board of Review. Mr.
Kwong is a Past President of the Asian Patent Attorneys
Association, a World Intellectual Property Organization appointed
Neutral for Alternative Dispute Resolution and Uniform Domain
Name Dispute Resolution Policy Panelist, fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators (London) and Hong Kong Institute of
Arbitrators, a Chartered Arbitrator, Center for Effective Dispute
Resolution (CEDR) Accredited Mediator, and a Notary Public. He
is a listed Arbitrator and Adjudicator of the Hong Kong
International Arbitration Center. Mr. Kwong is a member of the
Advisory Committee on Review of Patent System in Hong Kong
and Convenor of its Working Group on Interim Regulatory
Measures of Patent Practitioners, member of Working Group on
Intellectual Property Trading and Convenor of its subgroup on IP
Arbitration and Mediation. He is also a member of the Steering
Committee on Mediation, Vice-Chairman of its Regulatory
Framework Sub-committee and Special Committee on Evaluative
Mediation set up by the Department of Justice. He is also a
Director of Applied Science and Technology Research Institute
(ASTRI).

Mr. Kwong obtained a bachelor’'s degree in laws (LLB) in
November 1976 and a postgraduate certificate in laws (PCLL) in
July 1977, both from the University of Hong Kong.
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Mr. KWONG Ping Man, aged 55, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director, chairman of audit committee,
member of nomination committee and of remuneration committee
of the Company since 25 March 2011.

Mr. Kwong has rich experience in accounting and administration
and is currently a director of O’Park Corporate Services Limited.
He had previously worked as accountant, company secretary and
chief financial officer at various private companies and main board
listed companies.

Mr. Kwong currently is the independent non-executive director of
Dragon King Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8493), Royal
Deluxe Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3789) and Rare Earth
Magnesium Technology Group Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Group Sense (International) Limited) (Stock Code: 601).

Besides, Mr. Kwong had been an independent non-executive
director of the following companies until he retired from his office:
Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 509) until
June 2019, Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 907) until April 2017, Clear Lift Holdings Limited (now
known as Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group
Limited) (Stock Code: 1341) until March 2017, Yat Sing Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 3708) until March 2016 and China Candy
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8182) until February 2016.

Mr. Kwong obtained a bachelor’s degree in commerce accounting
from Curtin University of Technology in Australia in August 1996,
a postgraduate diploma in corporate administration (part-time)
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1998
and a master’s degree in professional accounting from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003. He is a member
of the Australian Society of Certified Practicing Accountants (now
known as CPA Australia), a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries & Administrators
respectively.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred, aged 64, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director, Chairman of nomination
committee, member of audit committee and of remuneration
committee of the Company since 25 March 2011. Mr. Cheung has
rich experience in the Chinese style fast food restaurant industry
in Hong Kong. From 2002 to 2009, he co-owned and operated
with others the Chinese-style fast food restaurants Cousin Cousin
Cafe in Hong Kong. Currently, Mr. Cheung has licensed the trade
name of aforesaid Chinese-style fast food restaurants to other
independent third parties in the PRC at no charge. Since 2004,
Mr. Cheung has been engaged in the provision of corporate
training on communication skills, interpersonal skills and team
building to corporations, including corporations in the restaurant
industry. He is also a film director, script-writer and producer.

He obtained a diploma of Arts in Chinese Language Literature
from the Hong Kong Baptist College (now known as Hong Kong
Baptist University) in June 1979 and an Executive Master of
Business Administration from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in May 2009.

Mr. WONG Chung Yeung, aged 42, is the chief financial officer
and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong joined our
Group in January 2012 and is responsible for the overall
management of the Group’s finance and accounting, taxation,
information technology, investor relations and listing rules
compliance functions. He graduated from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 1999 with a bachelor’s
degree of business administration in accounting and is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Wong has rich experience in finance and accounting profession.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong worked in Ernst & Young
from June 2000 to December 2011. Mr. Wong was appointed as
a non-executive director of Goal Forward Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1854) since May 2016.
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EENSREEAEBE

Mr. CHEN Zhi Xiong, aged 49, is the Vice President of our
Group. He has been with our Group since May 2000. Since
January 2013, Mr. Chen has become the Vice President of our
Group. He was an editor on the China Hotel and Catering
Industry Book Series Editorial Board from May 2005, honorary
consultant to the Provincial and Hong Kong Gourmet Weekly from
March 2006 and chairman of the Expert Committee of Zhuhai
Food & Beverage Association from June 2006. He was accredited
as China Cooking Master by China Hotel Association in 2003 and
accredited National Judge Qualification (Hotel) — First Class from
China Hotel Association in 2004. Mr. Chen was also awarded the
group silver award in the 5th National Cooking Skills Competition
in 2003 by The Organizing Committee of the 5th National
Cooking Skills Competition, the Hong Kong, Guangdong and
Macau Top Ten Chefs 2004 — Gold Award by the Editorial Board
of the Hong Kong, Guangdong and Macau Chefs Ceremony and
the Quan Guo Shi Jia Jin Shao Jiang in the China Hotel System
Service Skill Competition by the China Hotel System Service SKill
Competition (Zhongnan District) Organizing Committee in 2005. He
obtained a certificate from the Nutritional Occupational Skills
Testing Authority of the Ministry of Labor and Social Security for
passing the tests for nutritionist and Chinese cook in December
2005 and June 2007 respectively. In 2006, he was awarded a
Diploma of Membership by Les Amis d’Escoffier Society, Inc. (now
known as Les Amis d’Escoffier Society of New York, Inc.) as
Chen completed the ERS 5S
Management Certificate Course from the Hong Kong

Honorary Chairman. Mr.

Environmental Resource and Safety Institute in April 2009.
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices to safeguard the interests of the
Company and its shareholders and to enhance corporate value
and accountability. These can be achieved by an effective Board,
segregation of duties with clear responsibility, sound internal
control, appropriate risk assessment procedures and transparency
to all the shareholders.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set
out in Appendix 14 (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report) to the Listing Rules throughout the year.

The Board is in charge of the task of maximizing the financial
performance of the Group and making decisions in the best
interest of the Company. The Board is responsible for formulating
business policies and strategies, monitoring the performance of
the senior management of the Company, adopting and monitoring
internal business and management control, approving and
monitoring annual budgets and business plans, reviewing
operational and financial performance, considering dividend policy,
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s systems of financial
control and risk management. The Board has delegated the day-
to-day management, administration and operation of the Group
and implementation and execution of Board policies and
strategies to the executive directors and management of the
Company.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Board consists of seven members,
including four executive directors, Mr. YIP Shu Ming (Chairman),
Mr. CHAN Man Wai (Vice-Chairman), Mr. KU Hok Chiu, Ms.
WENG Peihe (Chief Executive Officer), and three independent
non-executive directors, Mr. KWONG Chi Keung, Mr. KWONG
Ping Man and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred. For the Board’s
composition under major diversified perspectives, one member is
female, one of them aged between 40 and 49, one aged
between 50 and 59 and five aged 60 or above. All members are
Chinese with more than five years of service. Biographical details
of each of the directors are set out on pages 22 to 28 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
among members of the Board.

Service contract of each of the executive directors expired on 24
March 2020 and was renewed for a specific term commencing
from 25 March 2020 and expiring on 24 March 2023, which
could be terminated by either party by giving not less than three
months’ written notice.

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed three independent non-executive directors
(representing more than one-third of the Board), one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting and financial
management. All the independent non-executive directors have
confirmed in writing to the Company that they have met all the
guidelines for assessing their independence as set out in rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Letter of appointment of each of the
independent non-executive directors expired on 24 March 2020
and was renewed for a specific term commencing from 25 March
2020 and expiring on 24 March 2023, which could be terminated
by either party by giving not less than one month’s written notice.
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Not less than one-third of the Board are subject to retirement
from office by rotation at the annual general meeting provided
that every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years in accordance with the Articles of
Association.

All directors, including independent non-executive directors, have
given sufficient time and effort to the affairs of the Group.
Independent non-executive directors have provided the Board with
their diversified expertise, experience and professional advice. The
Board believes that the ratio between executive directors and
independent non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate
to provide sufficient checks and balances in order to safeguard
the interests of shareholders of the Company and of the Group.
The Board also believes that the views and participation of the
independent non-executive directors in the Board and committee
meetings provide independent judgment on the issues relating to
strategy, performance, conflict of interest and management
process to ensure that the interests of all shareholders of the
Company are considered and safeguarded.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
in relation to the Group’s businesses and affairs as well as
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the company
secretary, who is responsible for providing directors with board
papers and related materials. The directors may seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying out
their duties and responsibilities.

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken
against directors arising out of corporate activities.

Corporate Governance Report
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board held four
regular board meetings. At these regular board meetings,
directors discussed and exchanged their views on significant
issues and general operations of the Group, formulated business
policies and strategies, reviewed the financial performance, budget
plan and approved the annual results for the year ended 31
December 2018 and the interim results of the Company for the
six months ended 30 June 2019.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in paragraph D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, and in this regard the duties of the Board shall include:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and the senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

directors of the Company; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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The Board is responsible for ensuring that sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems are maintained within
the Group. It is achieved by ongoing reviews through 2
committees, namely Audit Committee and risk management and
internal control committee (the “Risk and Control Committee”).
Risk and Control Committee comprises the chief executive officer
and chief financial officer of the Company, an external PRC legal
advisor engaged by the Company, and Mr. KWONG Ping Man
(the independent non-executive director, who possesses relevant
experience to review and assess the effectiveness and adequacy
of the Company’s internal control measures). Such reviews cover
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls.

The Company has also established an internal audit department in
which the internal audit manager is professionally qualified with
relevant experience to monitor and oversee daily operation of
internal control matters. The Risk and Control Committee is
responsible for i) the implementation of the remedial plans
recommended by the internal audit department and ii) ensuring
the compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable laws, rules
and regulations in various business locations. The internal audit
department and Risk and Control Committee facilitate the annual
review of the risk management and internal control systems and
directly report to the Audit Committee. Any deficiencies and risks
identified during the review process will be evaluated and
addressed in the Audit Committee and be reported to the Board
if the impact is considered as significant.

Pursuant to the paragraph C.2.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the process described above and the main feature of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems is through
effective  communications with various business units and
functional departments so as to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

Corporate Governance Report
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Besides, the Company has according to the requirement under
part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, established
written procedures for the handling and dissemination of inside
information and circulated to all staff and management who may
due to their roles and duties, be in possession of these potential
price sensitive information.

The Board, through the Audit Committee and Risk and Control
Committee, reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2019 in accordance to the requirement set out in
paragraph C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, and
discussed with the management of the Company and its external
and internal auditors. It is considered that i) no material change in
the nature and extent of significant risks was noted since last
annual review, i) no significant control failure or weakness that
may have a material impact on the Company’s financial
performance has been identified during the year, and iii) the
systems cover all material controls: including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions, are
effective and adequate to safeguard the Group’s assets and
shareholders’ interest.
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Attendance of the individual directors at the regular board
meetings and general meetings for the year ended 31 December

2019 is set out as follows:

Executive directors

HITEE

Mr. YIP Shu Ming (Chairman)
ERRALE(F/E)

Mr. CHAN Man Wai (Vice-chairman)

BR X8 % & (Bl F f2)

Mr. KU Hok Chiu

HEBELE

Ms. WENG Peihe (Chief Executive Officer)
PR T (7THAEH)

Independent non-executive directors
BUHBITESE

Mr. KWONG Chi Keung

I s

Mr. KWONG Ping Man

BB I 32 5% A

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred
RERFEST A
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Ik

Regular Board

Meetings
Attended/Total
ExeEes
HERY A

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

Annual

TEERRE

BE_T-NAF+-_A=t—BLEFEM@EH
EEHEEHE=TE S

EBERERREGZHE

Extraordinary

General Meeting General Meeting

Attended/Total
BRBFXE
HERE A"

1/1

1/1

1/1

1/1

1/1

1/1

1/1

Attended/Total
BRESHAE
HERE B

11

11

11

11

11

11

11
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At least 14 days’ notice prior to the date of regular board
meeting is given to all directors and an agenda together with
board papers are sent to all directors no less than three days
before the date of regular board meeting (or other agreed period).
All directors are given opportunity to include in the agenda any
other matter that they would like to discuss in the meeting. With
respect to the board committee meeting, reasonable prior notice
is given to all committee members. All directors and committee
members of the board committee are urged to attend the board
For the
directors and committee members, who are unable to attend the

meeting and board committee meeting in person.

meeting, participation through electronic means are arranged and
available.

Should a director has a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the board meeting, he will abstain from
voting. Independent non-executive directors with no conflict of
interest will be present at meetings dealing with such conflict of
interest issues.

The company secretary assists the chairman of the Board in
preparation of the agenda for the board meeting and board
committee meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations regarding the board meeting are followed. He also
prepares and keeps detailed minutes of each board meeting and
board committee meeting. Within a reasonable time after each
meeting, the draft minutes is circulated to all directors or
committee members for comment and the final and approved
version of minutes is sent to all directors or committee members
for their records. Board committees, including the audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee, all
follow the applicable principles, practices and procedures used in

board meetings.
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The Company has received from all directors records of their AARBEWEEZ-_ZE—NF+_A=1+—
continuous professional development training for the year ended AEFEMBESNRAESZEEREEIIL
31 December 2019. Details of which are set out in below table: B FEBHEHIIAT

Type of Continuous Professional
Development

FEEXHRER
Attending Reading
training/ regulatory
seminar on updates or
regulatory information
development relevant to the
and directors’ Company or
duties its business
HEREA Bl i & AT
EEBRR EEERH

ESHE ABRE23IH
W e HEBHWESR

Mr. YIP Shu Ming v v
ERIALE
Mr. CHAN Man Wai v v
PR X {2 5 &
Mr. KU Hok Chiu v v/
HEBLE
Ms. WENG Peihe v v
F|mARLL
Mr. KWONG Chi Keung v v
BF 558 5% A
Mr. KWONG Ping Man v v/
BB I 32 58 A
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred v v
TREREST A
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Mr. YIP Shu Ming is the chairman of the Board and Ms. WENG
Peihe is the chief executive officer of the Company, in compliance
with the Code Provision A.2.1 of Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The divisions of responsibilities between the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company are
clearly divided to ensure a balance of power and authority and to
reinforce their independence and accountability.

Mr. YIP Shu Ming, being the chairman of the Company, is
responsible for providing leadership to the Board and ensuring
that the Board functions effectively; that directors receive in timely
manner adequate information which is complete and reliable and
that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board
meetings. The chairman also encourages directors to participate
actively in and to make a full contribution to the Board’s affairs so
that the Board can act in the best interest of the Company.

Ms. WENG Peihe, being the chief executive officer of the
Company, is responsible for the daily operations of the Company,
execution of business policies, strategies, objectives and plans as
formulated and adopted by the Board and leading the
management of the Company.

The Company has adopted its own code for securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the
Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The
Company has made specific enquiries to all of the directors and
all of the directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the year.
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The Company has received confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the terms of the
Non-compete Undertaking for the year under review.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of
the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2019 which are to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group as at that date and of the
Group’s results and cash flows for the year then ended and are
properly prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with
the applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.
The directors, having made appropriate enquiries, confirm that
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
acknowledging their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report”
contained in this annual report.

The Board has established three board committees, namely audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee, to
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties.

The Board adopted a set of written terms of reference of each of
the board committees of the Company which are in line with the
Listing Rules requirements. The written terms of reference of each
of the board committees of the Company are posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Company has established an Audit Committee since 25
March 2011 with written terms of reference (as amended or
supplemented) in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Audit
Committee comprises three members who are all independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. KWONG Ping Man (the
Chairman), Mr. KWONG Chi Keung and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting
Alfred. The Audit Committee reports to the Board and is
delegated by the Board to assess matters related to the financial
statements. Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is
required to perform, amongst the others, the following duties:

° making recommendation to the Board on appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor and approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of that external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control procedures and systems;

° reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

° facilitating the communication between external auditors,
internal audit department and management;

° ensuring that management has performed its duty to have
an effective internal control and risk management systems;

and

° monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual reports and accounts and half-year reports.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, four Audit Committee
meetings were held and all minutes were kept by the company
secretary. The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Company, annual results
and annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018, and the unaudited interim results and interim
report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2019,
assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and
risk management systems, reviewed the renewal of the continuing
connected transactions. The Audit Committee reported that there
was no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Attendance of individual members of the Audit Committee at
meetings for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out as
follows:

Committee Members
ZEERE

Mr. KWONG Ping Man (Chairman)
BRIR S5 (F )

Mr. KWONG Chi Keung

B A5 58 ST A

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred

SR ERRE KA
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HERY A

4/4
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The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor is set
out as follows:

SN TARBINSZEE 2 FHMEI T

Fee paid/payable

e ENER
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARBFTT
Type of service: Pk 75 1 48 :
Audit services Bz R 1,144 1,224
Non-audit services (Including tax advisory IEEZIRSE (BEHRBEE
and tax compliance services) AR ERRG) 23 25
Total #EEt 1,167 1,249

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee since
25 March 2011 with written terms of reference in accordance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. The principal responsibilities
of the Remuneration Committee include but not limited to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages relating to all directors
and senior management of our Group and ensure none of the
directors determine their own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three members who are all independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. KWONG Chi Keung (the
Chairman), Mr. KWONG Ping Man and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting
Alfred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held to review the remuneration
packages of the directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee has made recommendation to the board
on the remuneration package of senior management of the
Company. No director or his associate is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

Attendance of individual members of the Remuneration Committee
at meeting for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out as
follows:

Committee Members
ZEERE

Mr. KWONG Chi Keung (Chairman)
BRER A (F/E)

Mr. KWONG Ping Man

B I 32 5% A

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred

SR ERRE KA

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management by band is set out below:
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2/2
2/2
2/2

BE_Z-AF+_-_A=t+—HILFESR
EEABZHMARNEIWT

Number of

persons

Remuneration band (RMB) HEAR (AR A
1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,00122,000,000 2

4,000,001 to 4,500,000

Further particulars regarding the directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments and the five highest paid employees as required to
be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set
out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.

4,000,001%4,500,000

RIE LR B E+ R BB E = RITHARE
ZHEARIRERFHREEREZE—Z
B D B A AR M SE8 9 -
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The Company has established a Nomination Committee since 25
March 2011 with written terms of reference (as amended or
supplemented) in accordance with A.5 of Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Nomination Committee is responsible for,
including but not limited to, making recommendations to the
Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies of the Board. The
Nomination Committee comprises three members who are all
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. CHEUNG Kin
Ting Alfred (the Chairman), Mr. KWONG Chi Keung and Mr. KWONG
Ping Man.

As the Company sees the importance of the Board’s diversity in
achieving a sustainable and balanced development. The Company
adopted board diversity policy. Therefore, while the Board’s
appointment will be based on meritocracy, a range of diversity
perspectives will also be considered, including but not limited to
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, gender, age, ethnicity and length of service.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, two Nomination
Committee meetings were held by the Nomination Committee,
members of the Nomination Committee have reviewed the
composition of the Board which is determined by directors’ skills
and experience appropriate to the Company’s business and the
nomination policy of the Company.
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Attendance of individual members of the Nomination Committee at
meeting for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out as
follows:

Committee Members
ZEBRE

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred (Chairman)
RERRESR A (F/E)

Mr. KWONG Chi Keung

At

Mr. KWONG Ping Man

BB IR X 5 A=

Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee has
been delegated to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.
The Board is ultimately responsible for selection and appointment
of new Directors.

The Nomination Committee should utilize various methods for
identifying candidates for directorship, including recommendations
from Board members, management, and professional search firms.
In addition, the Nomination Committee will consider candidates for
directorship properly submitted by the shareholders of the
Company.
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The evaluation of candidates for directorship by the Nomination
Committee may include, without limitation, review of resume and
job history, personal interviews, verification of professional and
personal references and performance of background checks. The
Board will consider the recommendations of the Nomination
Committee and is responsible for designating the candidates for
directorship to be considered by the Shareholders for their
election at the general meeting of the Company, or appointing the
suitable candidate to act as Director to fill the Board vacancies or
as an additional to the Board members, subject to compliance of
the constitutional documents of the Company. All appointments of
Director should be confirmed by letter of appointment and/or
service contract setting out the key terms and conditions of the
appointment of the Directors.

The Nomination Committee should consider the following
qualifications as a minimum criteria to be required for a candidate
in recommending to the Board to be a potential new Director, or
the continued service of existing Director:

° the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

° proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field
and the ability to exercise sound business judgment;

° skills that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

° the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success;

° an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is
required for a member of the Board and the commitment of
time and energy necessary to diligently carry out those
responsibilities;

° independence: the candidates for independent non-executive
directorship should meet the “independence” criteria as
required under the Listing Rules and the composition of the
Board is in conformity with the provisions of the Listing
Rules.

The Nomination Committee may also consider such other factors

as it may deem are in the best interests of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole.
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The following procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM of
the Company are prepared in accordance with Articles 64 of the
Articles of Association:

(1) One or more shareholders (“Requisitionist(s)”) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings, shall have the right, by written
notice, to require an EGM to be called by the directors for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

(2)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the directors or
the company secretary of the Company and lodged with (i)
the head office and (ii) the registered office of the Company
in the Cayman Islands at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands.

(8) The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition.

(4) If the directors fail to proceed to convene the EGM within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit, the Requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the directors shall be reimbursed to
the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions under the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures for
shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings other
than a proposal of a person for election as director. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such
written requisition.
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The following procedures for a shareholder of the Company to
propose a person for election as a director of the Company are
prepared in accordance with article 110 of the Articles of
Association:

A shareholder may propose a person (“Candidate”) for election as
a director at a general meeting by lodging the following documents
within the period mentioned below at the head office and principle
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 3 on 10th
Floor, Greenfield Tower, Concordia Plaza, No. 1 Science Museum
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong or the branch share registrar and
transfer office (“Hong Kong Share Registrar”) of the Company in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong:

(@)  a written notice (“Proposal Notice”) of the intention to propose
the Candidate for election as a Director, which must (i) state
the information of the Candidate as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, which is available on the Stock
Exchange’s website (www.hkex.com.hk); and (i) must be
signed by the nominating shareholder; and

(b) a written notice (“Consent Notice”) by the Candidate, which
must () indicate his/her willingness to be elected as a
Director and consent to the publication of his/her personal
information as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules;
and (i) must be signed by the Candidate.

The Proposal Notice and the Consent Notice shall be lodged with
the head office or the Hong Kong Share Registrar of the
Company for a period of at least seven (7) clear days
commencing no earlier than the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting and ending no later than seven (7)
clear days before the date of such general meeting.

To enable the shareholders to make an informed decision on their
election at a general meeting, the Company shall publish an
announcement or issue a supplemental circular as soon as
practicable after the receipt of the Proposal Notice and the
Consent Notice. The Company shall include particulars of the
Candidate in the announcement or the supplementary circular.
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The Company shall assess whether or not it is necessary to
adjourn the general meeting of the election to give shareholders
at least ten (10) business days to consider the relevant
information disclosed in the announcement or supplemental
circular.

The aforesaid procedures have been uploaded to the Company’s
website.

To direct enquiries to the Board, the shareholders should submit
his/her enquiries in writing with his/her detailed contact
information to the company secretary at the following:

By post to the head office

Tel: (852) 2180-7055

Fax: (852) 2180-7056

Email: info@tanggong.cn
Website: http://www.tanggong.cn

The Company understands the importance of maintaining effective
mutual communication with its shareholders and values every
opportunity to communicate with them. The Company has
adopted a policy of disclosing clear and relevant information to
shareholders through various channels in a timely manner. Annual
and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders by
post as requested. The Company has also complied with
provisions of the Listing Rules by posting announcements,
notices, annual reports, interim reports and shareholders’ circulars
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
(http://www.tanggong.cn). Apart from these documents, press
releases and newsletters are posted on the Company’s website to
enhance its transparency. Being constantly updated in a timely
manner, the website also contains a wide range of additional
information on Company’s business activities.
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In addition to publication of information, the annual general
meeting of the Company provides a forum for communication
between shareholders and directors. The chairman of the Board in
person chairs the annual general meeting to ensure shareholders’
views are communicated to the Board. Moreover, the briefing on
the Company’s business and the questions and answer session at
the annual general meeting allow shareholders to stay informed of
the Group’s strategies and goals.

In addition to the chairman of the Board, the chairman of the
board committees, or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees and the external auditors of the Company,
are available to answer any queries that shareholders may have.
The chairman of the Board will propose separate resolutions for
each issue to be considered at the annual general meeting.

The annual general meeting proceedings are reviewed from time
to time to ensure that the Company follows best corporate
governance practices and shareholders’ rights are preserved.
Notice of annual general meeting is delivered to all shareholders
at least 20 clear business days prior to the date of the annual
general meeting, setting out details of each proposed resolution,
voting procedures and other relevant information. The procedures
for demanding and conducting a poll will be explained by the
chairman of the Board at the annual general meeting. Poll results
are released by way of publication of an announcement.

During the year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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The board of directors present their report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

The Group’s fair review of the business during the year,
discussion on the future business development of the Group and
the descriptions of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of 31 December 2019 (if any) are set out
in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” from pages 6 to 9 and pages 10 to 21 respectively of
this annual report.

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects would be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties including business risks, operational risks and
financial management risks.

The details of financial risk management objectives and practices
of the Group is set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
mentioned above which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.
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The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its
immediate and long-term goals. The management will continue to
develop efficient communication platform to enhance relationships
with individual and corporate customers, which enjoys good
relationship with suppliers and customers. During the year of
2019, there were no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers. The Group also
recognises the importance of human resources to its success.
Details are disclosed on page 20 in this annual report.

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to
comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and continue to adopt effective measures to achieve
efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste reduction, and
review its effectiveness from time to time. Green initiatives and
measures have been adopted in the Group’s managed
restaurants. Such initiatives include recycling of recyclable waste,
various energy saving measures, water saving practices and
promote the awareness of customers and employees. The Group
will disclose further details in its Environmental, Social and
Governance report which will be published subsequent to this
annual report in accordance with the requirement of Rule 13.91
and the reporting framework of Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the Mainland China while the Company
itself is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed
on the Stock Exchange. Our establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in the
Cayman Islands, Mainland China and Hong Kong. During the year
ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report, we
have complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
Mainland China, Hong Kong and the Cayman Islands that have a
significant impact on the Group.
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The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
page 88 of this annual report.

An interim special dividend of HK3.40 cents per ordinary share
amounting to approximately RMB32,130,000 in total was paid to
the shareholders of the Company during the year.

In order to preserve sufficient working capital for the impact of the
Epidemic on the Group and the Group’s future development
opportunities, the Board does not recommend the payment of
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Board of the Company approved and adopted a dividend
policy (the “Dividend Policy”) which became effective since 1
January 2019. According to the Dividend Policy, the Company
considers stable and sustainable returns to shareholders of the
Company to be its goal and endeavours to maintain a dividend
policy to achieve such goal. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
would take into account the Group’s results of operations,
earnings performance, cashflows, financial condition, future
prospects and other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
Whilst the Board will review from time to time for determination
on proposed dividend with the above factors taken into account,
there can be no assurance that dividends will be declared or paid
in any particular amount for any given period.
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For the purpose of determining the entitlement of the
Shareholders to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 9 June 2020 to 15
June 2020 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer
of share(s) will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the AGM, all transfers documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with Tricor Investor
Services Limited, the branch share registrar and transfer office of
the Company in Hong Kong, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 8 June 2020.

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on pages 216 to 217 of this annual report. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

The Company’s distributable reserves as at 31 December 2019,
as calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to RMB25,798,000, which
included the share premium account of the Company amounting
to RMB15,686,000. Under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and retasted) of the Cayman Islands and
the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, the share
premium account of the Company, is distributable to its
shareholders provided that immediately following the distribution
or the payment of dividends, the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
amounting to RMB111,000.
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The directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Mr. YIP Shu Ming
Mr. CHAN Man Wai
Mr. KU Hok Chiu
Ms. WENG Peihe

Mr. KWONG Chi Keung
Mr. KWONG Ping Man
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. YIP Shu Ming, Mr. KWONG Ping Man and Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred will retire as directors by rotation and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as directors at
the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from Mr. KWONG Chi
Keung, Mr. KWONG Ping Man and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred.
As at the date of this report, the Company still considers these
independent non-executive directors to be independent.
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Each of Mr. YIP Shu Ming, Mr. CHAN Man Wai, Mr. KU Hok Chiu
and Ms. WENG Peihe, all being executive directors, has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a specific term of
three years that expired on 24 March 2020 and was renewed for
a specific term commencing from 25 March 2020 and expiring on
24 March 2023, which could be terminated by either party by
giving not less than three months’ written notice.

Each of Mr. KWONG Chi Keung, Mr. KWONG Ping Man and Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred, all being independent non-executive
directors, has been appointed for a specific term of three years
that expired on 24 March 2020 and was renewed for a specific
term commencing from 25 March 2020 and expiring on 24 March
2023, which could be terminated by either party by giving not less
than one month’s written notice. The appointments are subject to
the provisions of the Articles of Association with regard to
vacation of office of directors, removal and retirement by rotation
of directors.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
a service contract with the Company or any of our subsidiaries
which is not terminable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The biographical details of directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are disclosed in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 22
to 28 of this annual report.

Other than the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Plan
disclosed below, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

RZZE-NE+T_A=+—H ARAESF
REBITBRABRARA MEEMAREE
(E&REFEHLHEEMEXVE) 2B - 18
Rl REEET  BEALERARFAR
EREFLHEGRIIEB2MEFEZELMA
ZHEmIORRE  IREBEFETAAMEAR
AR ER AR FHBEINNT

as follows:

Name of Director

EEHR

Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each of
the Company
AR A FIREE0.057 ;T 2 & iR

Mr. YIP Shu Ming (“Mr. YIP")
EwsE((EEE]D

Mr. CHAN Man Wai (“Mr. CHAN")
R (& & (TREED

Mr. KU Hok Chiu (“Mr. KU”)
HEBEE(ELED

Ms. WENG Peihe (“Ms. WENG”)
AL (THLL))
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Number of ordinary shares ™o© 7

Beneficial
owners

BEREAA

9,298,000 (L)

26,870,000 (L)

%EH&% g 1)

Held by
controlled
corporation
HEEH
EEEFE

246,750,000 (L)

(Note 2) (Ftit2)

352,500,000 (L)

(Note 3) (Hf##3)

105,850,000 (L)

(Note 4) (Ffit4)

Total
st

246,750,000 (L)

361,798,000 (L)

105,850,000 (L)

26,870,000 (L)

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding as
at 31 December
2019
R=ZZB-N%F
+=—BA=+—H
BESNES K

22.97%

33.69%

9.85%

2.50%



Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the directors’ long position in the shares of
the Company or the relevant associated corporation.

2) These shares were held by Current Success Investments Limited,
which was wholly-owned by Mr. YIP Shu Ming. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. YIP is taken to be interested in the shares held by
Current Success Investments Limited.

(3) These shares were held by Best Active Investments Limited, which
was wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Man Wai. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. CHAN is taken to be interested in the shares held by Best
Active Investments Limited.

(4) These shares were held by Bright Mind Investments Limited, which
was wholly-owned by Mr. KU Hok Chiu. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
KU is taken to be interested in the shares held by Bright Mind

Investments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the
persons (other than a director or chief executive of the Company)
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO (“SFO Register”) were as follows:

RZE—AF+-_A=Z+—H RAQRAK
MBI P IRIEFE F L E 50 5336
BARRBTFEEZER ([EH KBS
B EEERIRE 2&F (R
RABEFHRETETHAERIMN DT :

Name of Shareholders

IR R 2 &

Current Success Investments Limited

(Note 2) (ff i£2)

Ms. WONG Sau Mui Mete 2
&R )

Best Active Investments Limited
(Note 3) (/1 i#3)

Ms. AU Yim Bing Mt 3
[ sk £ 4 e

Bright Mind Investments Limited

(Note 4) (H1#4)

Ms. KU Wai Man ete 4
g % E ﬁ j: (H i)

Orchid Asia IV, L.P. (Note §(#i5)
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Capacity/nature of interest

En HmtE

Beneficial owner
EmEAA

Interest of spouse
fic 18 42 =

Beneficial owner

BEDBEAA

Interest of spouse

Fo B st

Beneficial owner

BB A

Interest of spouse
B 48 # 2

Beneficial owner
EmEA A

Number and
class of
securities Mot 7
EFHEHEAR
ﬁﬁ(ﬂﬁs‘jv

246,750,000
shares (L)
P (L)

246,750,000
shares (L)
P& (L)

352,500,000
shares (L)
B3 (L)

361,798,000
shares (L)
P (L)

105,850,000
shares (L)
P (L)

105,850,000
shares (L)
B3 (L)

82,705,000
shares (L)
P (L)

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding as at
31 December 2019
R-ZB-h#F
+t=—A=t—H
RESNB D

22.97%

22.97%

32.82%

33.69%

9.85%

9.85%

7.70%
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Approximate

percentage of

Number and shareholding as at
class of 31 December 2019

securities e 7 R=ZZE-N%F

Name of Shareholders Capacity/nature of interest EHHER +=ZHA=+—8H

BRER By REEHtE k- R BRESAES T

OAIV Holdings, L.P. (ote 9(iis) Interest of a controlled 82,705,000 7.70%
corporation shares (L)
EEHEE RS A3 (L)

Orchid Asia IV Group Management, Interest of a controlled 82,705,000 7.70%
Limited (Note & (izz5) corporation shares (L)
EEHEE R AR (L)

Orchid Asia IV Group, Limited Interest of a controlled 82,705,000 7.70%
(Note &) (#1#5) corporation shares (L)
RAEHAE R A& (L)

Orchid Asia IV Investment, Limited Interest of a controlled 82,705,000 7.70%
(Note 5) (i i£5) corporation shares (L)
EEHEE RS B3 (L)

YM Investment Limited Interest of a controlled 84,115,000 7.83%
(Note 5) (1 £5) corporation shares (L)
EEHEE R AR (L)

Ms. LAM Lai Ming (et 9 Founder of a discretionary 84,115,000 7.83%
BB B 2 - (s trust shares (L)
2REETAITA A& (L)

Mr. LI Gabriel Note & Founder of a discretionary 84,115,000 7.83%
BB S A its) trust shares (L)
REFTEIMA A3 (L)

The LI Family (PTC) Limited Mete 90755 Trystee 84,115,000 7.83%
ZEEA shares (L)
AR (L)
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The letter “L” denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares
of the Company.

These shares were beneficially owned by Current Success
Investments Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. YIP Shu Ming.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. YIP is taken to be interested in the shares
held by Current Success Investments Limited. Ms. WONG Sau Mui
is the spouse of Mr. YIP. Under the SFO, Ms. WONG is taken to be
interested in the shares in which Mr. YIP is interested.

These shares were beneficially owned by Best Active Investments
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Man Wai. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. CHAN is taken to be interested in the shares held
by Best Active Investments Limited. Ms. AU Yim Bing is the spouse
of Mr. CHAN. Under the SFO, Ms. AU is taken to be interested in
the shares in which Mr. CHAN s interested.

These shares were beneficially owned by Bright Mind Investments
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. KU Hok Chiu. By virtue of
the SFO, Mr. KU is taken to be interested in the shares held by
Bright Mind Investments Limited. Ms. KU Wai Man is the spouse of
Mr. KU. Under the SFO, Ms. KU is taken to be interested in the
shares in which Mr. KU is interested.

Hret

FEILIRRBRRARARBMDPHFAE -

% % W& 15 fACurrent Success Investments
Limited® #= # 74 ' MCurrent Success
Investments Limited /3 Fi 5= 48 AR 5 A5 & &
B RBESFLBER  EXEERAER
Current Success Investments LimitedFf7 4
BihrHEEREZ AR XL REREN
BB - RIBEEFEZFRHBERD XL RHEE
REEEHEERERORDPHEER -

5% {7 i Best Active Investments Limited
H = B B MBest Active Investments
Limited J R B SEE 2 EHA - RRBHE
% R EIE GG - BR A IR A Best Active
Investments Limited AT 4% % 15 2 # B #E 2= ©
BYKkZTRREENLEB - RIBEEF R
Hﬁff‘* Bl BELTHRABRREERAE
EHRMDPHEEER -

e
% 5

=113

3 S

Z A% 17 f Bright Mind Investments Limited
E 2% % B MBright Mind Investments
Limted 5l BBEELEHER - IBIRE
H R EIEIED - E %k E AR AR Bright Mind
Investments Limited AT 4% A% 15 1 % B 4 &= ©
TERZTAHEENRES BEFEHK
HMERY X THERRN G ERBRE
mHRD P AR -



5) So far as the directors are aware of, these shares were beneficially
owned as to 82,705,000 shares by Orchid Asia IV, L.P. and as to
1,410,000 shares by Orchid Asia IV Co-investment, Limited. Orchid
Asia IV, L.P. was wholly controlled by OAIV Holdings, L.P., which
was in turn wholly controlled by Orchid Asia IV Group
Management, Limited, which was in turn wholly controlled by
Orchid Asia IV Group, Limited, which was in turn wholly controlled
by Orchid Asia IV Investment, Limited, which was approximately
92.61% controlled by YM Investment Limited. Orchid Asia IV Co-
investment, Limited was wholly controlled by YM Investment
Limited. Under the SFO, OAIV Holdings, L.P., Orchid Asia IV Group
Management, Limited, Orchid Asia IV Group, Limited, Orchid Asia IV
Investment, Limited and YM Investment Limited were taken to be
interested in the shares beneficially owned by Orchid Asia IV, L.P.,
and YM Investment Limited was taken to be interested in the
shares beneficially owned by Orchid Asia IV Co-investment, Limited.
Ms. Lam Lai Ming and Mr. Li Gabriel were also interested in YM
Investment Limited through The LI Family (PTC) Limited as Trustee
and were taken to be interested in the shares in which YM
Investment Limited was interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person
(other than a director or chief executive of the Company) had
registered an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO.
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Up to and as at 31 December 2019, no options have been
granted or agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme. Summary of some of the principal terms of
the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
Company. The directors consider the Share Option
Scheme, with its broadened basis of participation, will
enable the Company to reward the employees, the
directors and other selected participants for their
contributions to the Company.

The directors may, at its absolute discretion, invite any
person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants, to take up options to subscribe for
shares:

(aa) any employee (whether full-time or part-time
including any executive director but excluding
any non-executive director) of the Company, any
of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”)
in which any member of the Company holds an
equity interest;

(bb) any non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

HERRZ_Z—NWFT+ZA=4+—
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(cc)

(ff)

any supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Company or any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Company or
any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to
any member of the Company or any Invested
Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Company
or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the
Company or any Invested Entity;

any advisor (professional or otherwise) or
consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Company or
any Invested Entity;

any other group or classes of participants who
have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business
arrangement to the development and growth of
the Company;

and, for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme,
the offer for the grant of option may be made to any

company wholly owned by one or more persons

belonging to any of the above classes of participants.

(cc)

(ff)
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(aa)

(bb)

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the share
capital of the Company in issue from time to
time.

The total number of the shares which may be
allotted and issued upon the exercise of all
options (excluding, for this purpose, options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company) to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue on the Listing Date (“General Scheme
Limit”), being 80,000,000 shares (after pro-rata
adjustments upon the Share Subdivision which
effective on 5 June 2018).

(aa)
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(cc)

Subject to (aa) above but without prejudice to (dd)
below, the Company may seek approval of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting
to refresh the General Scheme Limit provided
that the total number of shares which may be
allotted and issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the
Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as of the date of approval of the limit and,
for the purpose of calculating the limit, options
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or
exercised in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company) previously granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company will not be
counted. The circular sent by the Company to its
shareholders shall contain, among other
information, the information required under Rule
17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules and the
disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the
Listing Rules.

Subject to (aa) above and without prejudice to
(cc) above, the Company may seek separate
shareholders’ of the Company approval in
general meeting to grant options beyond the
General Scheme Limit or, if applicable, the
extended limit referred to in (cc) above to
participants specifically identified by the
Company before such approval is sought. In
such event, the Company must send a circular
to its shareholders containing a generic
description of the specified participants, the
number and terms of options to be granted, the
purpose of granting options to the specified
participants with an explanation as to how the
terms of the options serve such purpose and
such other information required under Rule
17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules and the
disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the
Listing Rules.

(cc)
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The total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon the exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised
or outstanding options) to each grantee in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company for the time being
(“Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options in
excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant
must be separately approved by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting of the Company with
such grantee and his associates abstaining from
voting. The number and terms (including the exercise
price) of options to be granted must be fixed before
the approval of the shareholders of the Company and
the date of the board meeting for proposing such
further grant should be taken as the date of grant for
the purpose of calculating the exercise price under
note (1) to Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during
a period to be determined and notified by the
directors to each grantee, which period may
commence from the date of the offer for the grant of
options is made, but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the option
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.
Unless otherwise determined by the directors and
stated in the offer for the grant of options to a
grantee, there is no minimum period required under
the Share Option Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised.
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The subscription price for the shares under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (j)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or
more board lots of the shares on the date of the offer
for the grant, which must be a business day; (i) the
average closing price of shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the offer for the
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an option within such time
as maybe specified in the offer for the grant, which
shall not be later than 21 days from the date of the
offer for the grant.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on 25 March 2011
and will expire on 24 March 2021.

As at 31 December 2019 and at the date of this
report, the total number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the exercise of options which may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme was
80,000,000 shares (after pro-rata adjustments upon the
Share Subdivision which became effective on 5 June
2018), representing about 7.45% and 7.43% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2019 and the date of this report
respectively.

Directors’ Report
EEE®RE

BRETEORORBEBRE
FEEETEEA)NVELER
EZAH(WEREER)TH
RN EBHEMEBELRMTEE —F
A EBRHBHRTE : () BER
HERERZBSASELEAR
MMM ESERERMTRKRG
FHWTE RO EE=ZE
FRREE -

REH—HRDOERERER
MAETHEEREIRRLE
AR HE B0 723 R Al Be I B B AR
S G HAR T FEE IR S R
R EZBHBEN21R) -

BRETESNEERMNEB R
- ——Ff=A=t+HABZE
ZE—F-AZ+TWMAIHEA
MT-FRERFER -

RZE-—NF+ZA=+T—HK
RI|EBH  1TERBBRES
Bl e 2 BT AT T 31T
2 %19 48 %1 /80,000,0008% A% 19
(BREAEEAEARMRL =
T N\ENARBERZERH D
7)) RMEERRERZZE— N
F+-_A=1+—BERAREAR
HiH) B 1T RN B97.45% K%
7.43% o

69



Directors’ Report
EEERE

10

The Board may, subject to and in accordance with the rules
of the Share Award Plan, make an award of shares to
certain classes of eligible participants as specified in the
Share Award Plan, as determined by the Board from time to
time on the basis of the Board’s opinion as to the proposed
awardee’s contribution and/or future contribution to the
development and growth of the Group. The shares and
other trust fund for the implementation of the Share Award
Plan are administered by a trustee or trustees (the “Share
Award Plan Trustee”) to be appointed by the Company.

Under the Share Award Plan, the Board shall determine the
eligibility of the eligible participants and the number of
shares to be awarded (the “Awarded Shares”) and notify the
Share Award Plan Trustee of the making of awards. The
Share Award Plan Trustee shall then set aside the
appropriate number of Awarded Shares pending the transfer
and vesting to the relevant participants out of a pool of
shares which shall comprise of, among others, shares either
(1) transferred to it from any person (other than the Group)
by way of gift; (2) purchased by the Share Award Plan
Trustee out of the funds received by it by way of gift or for
nominal consideration; and (3) subscribed for or purchased
by the Share Award Plan Trustee out of the funds allocated
by the Board out of the Group’s resources, subject to the
terms and conditions of the rules of the Share Award Plan.
The Share Award Plan Trustee may purchase shares on the
Stock Exchange at the prevailing market price or off market.
In respect of off-market transactions, purchases shall not be
made with any connected person, nor shall the purchase
price be higher than the lower of (1) the closing market price
on the date of such purchase, and (2) the average closing
market price for the five preceding trading days on which
shares of the Company were traded on the Stock
Exchange. In any given financial year of the Company, the
maximum numbers of shares to be purchased by the Share
Award Plan Trustee shall not exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue of the Company at the beginning
of such financial year. The Share Award Plan Trustee may
also subscribe for new shares at par or at such other
subscription price as instructed by the Board out of the
Group’s contribution if the Board considers it appropriate to
do so. The Company shall comply with the relevant Listing
Rules when granting the Awarded Shares.
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The legal and beneficial ownership of the relevant Awarded
Shares shall vest in the relevant selected participant within
10 business days after the latest of (1) the date specified on
the notice of the award given by the Board to the Share
Award Plan Trustee; and (2) where applicable, the date on
which the condition(s) or performance target(s) (if any) to be
attained by such selected participant as specified in the
related notice of award have been attained and notified to
the Share Award Plan Trustee by the Board in writing.

Unless early termination by the Board, the Share Award Plan
shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years
commencing from the adoption date. During the year, a total
number of 5,245,000 new Shares were granted and vested
under the Share Award Plan. Taking into account the effect
of retrospective adjustment made to the number of shares
as a result of Share Subdivision, up to and as at 31
December 2019, 32,004,000 shares had been regarded as
awarded and vested to selected grantees under the Share
Award Plan. Save as disclosed above, there was no
movement of the Awarded Shares during the year.

Save as disclosed in note 30(a) to the financial statements and in
the sections headed “Directors’ Report — Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this annual report, no director nor a connected
entity of a director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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During the vyear, the Group had conducted the following
connected transaction and continuing connected transactions
which were required to be disclosed pursuant to Rules 14A.71 of
the Listing Rules. Such transactions were the related party
transactions disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 24 May 2019, the Board resolved to recommend
granting of 3,080,000 Awarded Shares under Share Award
Plan (by way of issue and allotment of new Shares under
specific mandate) to Ms. Weng Peihe, a director of the
Company who accordingly is regarded as a connected
person, as an incentive to achieve sustainable and
satisfactory returns to the Company. The above constituted
a non-exempt connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and subject to reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which
was approved by independent shareholders of the Company
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 14 June 2019.
Details of which were set out in the announcement and the
circular of the Company dated 24 May 2019 and 29 May
2019 respectively.

Meco Group, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, is principally engaged in property investment.
It is owned as to 50% by Mr. CHAN Man Wai, 35% by Mr.
YIP Shu Ming and 15% by Mr. KU Hok Chiu. Dongguan
Well Excellent, a company established in the PRC with
limited liability, is principally engaged in property leasing. It is
wholly owned by HK Well Excellent, an investment holding
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and
owned as to 50% by Mr. CHAN Man Wai, 35% by Mr. YIP
Shu Ming and 15% by Mr. KU Hok Chiu. As Mr. CHAN Man
Wai, Mr. YIP Shu Ming and Mr. KU Hok Chiu are the
controlling shareholders of the Company and executive
directors, each of Meco Group and Dongguan Well Excellent
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.
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Pursuant to the CCT Tenancy Agreements entered into
between the Group as lessee and Meco Group or (as the
case may be) Dongguan Well Excellent as landlord, the
Group agreed to lease the premises set out below for a
specific term expiring on 31 December 2021. The leased
premises are used for operation of restaurant or ancillary
office by the respective Group member.

Further details in relation to the premises leased from Meco
Group and Dongguan Well Excellent are set out below:

S/N Date of Agreement

Fi#  HEBAH

Leases with Meco Group:

HERKE2HE:

(1) 21 December 2018
“E2-\F+ZA=t+-H

2) 21 December 2018
—E-\E+ZA=t+-H

Total rent payable under

(i) Location; and the CCT Tenancy

(i) Use Agreements (Note 1)
() % & RECCTHEMHRENH
(i) A7 wemEt)

Units 2101, 2102, 2103, 2105,
2106, 2107 and 2108, Block

1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021:

H, Expo Square, Dongcheng RMB3,960,000
District, Dongguan City, “Z-NF-A—-HZE
Guangdong Province, the PRC —E-—F

(i) Restaurant +-ZA=+-8:

() PEEREREMRAELE A R %3,960,0007C

EHHE2101 ~ 2102 - 2103
2105~ 2106 * 21072108
(i) £8

Units, 2058, 2068, 2078,
2088, 2098, 2248, 2258,
2308, 2318, 2348, 2358,

1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021:
RMB1,656,000

2418, 2428, 2438, 2448, “Z-NE-A-HE
2458, and 2468, Shenzhen T —-f
Cinema, Zhonghai Commercial, +ZA=+-8:

1 Xinyuan Road, Luohu District, AR #1,656,0007C
Shenzhen, the PRC

Restaurant

FEORYI M E HE R R

B R I8 BT2058 - 2068

2078 + 2088 * 2098 + 2248 *

2258 ~ 2308 » 2318 + 2348 »

2358 + 2418 + 2428 + 2438 *

2448 + 2458 22468 %

(i) BB

i

Term of lease

RER £
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Terms

Monthly rent of RMB110,000 is
payable by the Group to

1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021

Meco Group in advance —Z-NE-R—RAZ
each month. Such rent is —TZ-F
inclusive of rental tax and +-A=+—H

exclusive of water,
electricity, telephone,
television, heat, gas,
property management,
cleaning, internet, car park
and indoor facilities
maintenance fees.

AEEABAREREBRA
% AT AR %110,000
ToZEEBEREHE
TREKE B B
E ZHE BRRE MK
B -MEEEE F2E-
THE FEERENR
MREE -

Monthly rent of RMB46,000 is
payable by the Group to

1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021

Meco Group in advance “Z-NFE-A—HZ
each month. Such rent is T
inclusive of rental tax and +-A=+-H

exclusive of water,
electricity, telephone,
television, heat, gas,
property management,
cleaning, internet, car park
and indoor facilities
maintenance fees.
AREAGARERERR
S AT A K %46,000
ToZEeBEReHE
TREKE BB Ej
E ERE BB MR
B OMEEEE FZE.
g FEEREARX
M EE -
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(i) Location; and

Total rent payable under
the CCT Tenancy

(i) Use Agreements (Note 1)
S/N  Date of Agreement () %% RECCTHERBEEMN  Term of lease Terms
F¥  HEBH (i) A& weBEWH) HERR 8
(3) 21 December 2018 (i) Units 3018, 3078, 3088, 3098, 1 January 2019 to Monthly rent of RMB29,000 is 1 January 2019 to
—Z2-\f+ZA=1+—-H 3108, 3118 and 3128 Level 3, 31 December 2021: payable by the Group to 31 December 2021
Shenzhen Cinema, Zhonghai RMB1,044,000 Meco Group in advance —Z-NF-R-HZ
Commercial, 1 Xinyuan Road, —T-NE-A-HZE each month. Such rent is —TZ-F
Luohu District, Shenzhen, the —T-—F inclusive of rental tax and +-A=+-H
PRC +-A=+—8: exclusive of water,
(i) Ancillary office AR %1,044,0007C electricity, telephone,
() FEFYEREHTERIR television, heat, gas,
8 R S B B 33018 - property management,
3078 ~ 3088 ~ 3098 * 3108 * cleaning, internet, car park
3118J23128% and indoor facilities
(i) BERAZE maintenance fees.
AEBERBARNESEER
Al 5 A7 A R #29,000
ToZMeREReH A
TREKE B BiF
E-ERE BEAE KA
B MEEESE FRE.
tRB FEERENR
M EE o
(4) 21 December 2018 (i) Unit 4001 on Level 4, 1 January 2019 to Monthly rent of RMB110,000 is 1 January 2019 to

Z-\§+=ZA=+—H

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED

Shenzhen Cinema, Zhonghai
Commercial, 1 Xinyuan Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen, the

PRC
(i) Restaurant

() PEFRINESRIERIHR
g B R Y BT 484001

i) EE

BE (PE) ZRERDE

31 December 2021:
RMB3,960,000
ZZ-NF-A—-HZ
—E-—F
ToA=t-R:
AR #3,960,0007C

payable by the Group to
Meco Group in advance
each month. Such rent is
inclusive of rental tax and
exclusive of water,
electricity, telephone,
television, heat, gas,
property management,
cleaning, internet, car park
and indoor facilities
maintenance fees.

AEEARNEARRREER

B4 A8 A R%110,000
TemeaEREH A
TREKE BEE B
s EEE ERE
B NETEE F2E-
LRE FEEREAR
s EE -

31 December 2021
—F-hE-A-RZE
—E-—F

+-A=+-8
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(i) Location; and

Total rent payable under
the CCT Tenancy

(i) Use Agreements (Note 1)
S/N  Date of Agreement () %% RECCTHERBEEMN  Term of lease Terms
Fi#  HEAH (i) A% HEeBBEW21) HEHHK £8
(6) 21 December 2018 (i) Unit 1 on Level 6, Shenzhen 1 January 2019 to Monthly rent of RMB114,000 is 1 January 2019 to

“Z-N\§+ZA=t+—H

Lease with Dongguan Well Excellent:

ARZHFECHE:

(6) 21 December 2018
—E-\E+ZAZt+-H

Cinema, Zhonghai Commercial,
1 Xinyuan Road, Luohu District,
Shenzhen, the PRC

(i) Restaurant

() PEIRIIE D EHE B
FEBR R BRI E

(i) BB

(i) Units 3106, 3107, 3108, 4106,
4107 and 4108, Block H, Expo
Square, Dongcheng District,
Dongguan City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC

(i) Restaurant

() PEERERETRAE
E%HE3106 - 3107 + 3108
4106 + 41072 4108E

(i) 28

31 December 2021
RMB4,104,000
—E-NF-A-HE
—E-—F
+=ZA=+-R:
AR %4,104,0007C

1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021:
RMB3,276,000
—T-NF-A-HZ
—E-—F
+=A=+-8:
AR 3,276,000

payable by the Group to
Meco Group in advance
each month. Such rent is
inclusive of rental tax and
exclusive of water,
electricity, telephone,
television, heat, gas,
property management,
cleaning, internet, car park
and indoor facilities
maintenance fees.
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Monthly rent of RMB91,000 is
payable by the Group to
Dongguan Well Excellent
each month. Such rent is
inclusive of rental tax and
exclusive of water,
electricity, telephone,
television, heat, gas,
property management,
cleaning, internet, car park
and indoor facilities
maintenance fees.
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Note:

(1) The rent was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations between
the parties and determined by reference to the prevailing
market rent of the premises.

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions
undertaken by the Group were entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i) on
normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole, as required in
Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, was engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst &
Young have issued their unqualified letter containing the
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed in (a) and (b) above by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
required contributions under the schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of trustees. Under the rule of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at rate specified in the rules.

The Group contributed RMB46.6 million to the above mentioned
schemes for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
were less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year and
aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for
the year.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the
directors are reviewed by the remuneration committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. The Company has adopted
Share Option Scheme and Share Award Plan as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of each of the schemes
are set out on pages 64 to 71 in this annual report.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25%
of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the
public as at the date of this report.

None of the directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or any of their respective associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group.
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Mr. CHAN Man Wai, Mr. YIP Shu Ming, Mr. KU Hok Chiu, Best
Active Investments Limited, Current Success Investments Limited
and Bright Mind Investments Limited, have given an irrevocable
non-compete undertaking in favour of the Group pursuant to
which each of them irrevocably, unconditionally, jointly and
severally undertaken, among other matters, not to, directly or
indirectly, carry on, invest in or be engaged in any business which
would or may compete with the business of the Group. Details of
the Non-compete Undertaking have been set out in the section
headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” in the
Prospectus.

The Non-compete Undertaking has become effective from the
Listing Date.

The Company has received the confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the terms of the
Non-compete Undertaking from the Listing Date to the date of
this report.

The independent non-executive directors had reviewed the
compliance with and enforcement of the terms of the Non-
compete Undertaking by the Controlling Shareholders from the
Listing Date to the date of this report.

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the
Directors for the time being of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective
office, except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through
their own fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against the Directors of the Company.
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Save for the share award plan disclosed in note 27 to the
financial statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting policies,
accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group and
the consolidated financial statements and results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
YIP Shu Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2020
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Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tang
Palace (China) Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 88 to 215, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2019,
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then

and of its consolidated financial

ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RREETRNETRAN Tel B3F: +852 2846 9888
HHEPRAEE 15 Fax {8E.: +852 2868 4432
FIEKE 22 12 ey.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our

audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matter

Revenue recognition

The Group generates revenue
mainly from its restaurant
operations in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) at the point in time
when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the
goods. Majority of the sales of
the Group were cash sales
and credit card sales. The
Group also issued prepaid
cards to customers whereby
customers would deposit
certain amounts of cash in
advance in prepaid cards
which would be utilised for
future food consumption.
During the year, revenue
recorded under prepaid cards
amounted to
RMB347,500,000.

There is a risk of improper
revenue recognition which may
lead to a material
misstatement on revenue.
Accordingly, we identified this
matter as a key audit matter.

Relevant disclosures are
included in note 5 to the
financial statements.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

We have tested the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of the key
controls relating to revenue
recognition. We also
performed audit procedures
including cut-off test for the
transactions near the year end,
test of transactions by
vouching, on a sampling basis,
to the sales summary, sales
invoices and general ledger
postings. In addition, we
performed analytical review to
consider unusual trends that
could indicate material
misstatement to revenue.
Regarding the prepaid
customers, we checked to the
utilisation of card balances in
the sales system and general
ledger postings for proper
revenue recognition upon the
consumption of food and
beverages.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lai Ho Yin.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2020

Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHE RS

REMERI BEEEHERZEQEBT A
FNEAEE BHELTHEMERNESER

% BRESEZPHEM L REES M E
] BRERFE -

EERNBRZESRIEBH E)féﬁﬂj;li
RefBEBEMENEREREEER I

ftb P98 18 7B A] AE & 12 301K 3R 7 \fg%%i”ﬁ
SMNFEBENEMEIR  AREHEAN
BRAT - BEEEE -

BER@BBMNERD BEREW

=

\

/
\ﬁ Bl

W

L= %Tﬁﬁﬂm Bﬂ’%&%«%ﬁ’]%ﬁrr%i
2 AMmMBKEREFEH B FHEZUE
WERHEMELER Kf#/f@/ﬁfﬁT/Lﬁ

ARAFBEEELEHR AEHEEFENEBR
T mMRAEBEHES i&:‘:#/ﬁ%_%%ﬁ
Lﬁ%ﬁ@fﬁ%iﬂ&iﬁ’]“%ﬁﬂé’
RETEEREFBBLZER-

HEARBIZBERENETHEABAE

S ER
==\

R EEH
B AT

&t
—®-FE=A=1A

87



For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T—NWF+_A=+—HIFE

2018
—T—N\&F
Notes RMB’000
B it AR T T
Revenue & 5 1,495,087 1,492,128
Other income H g A 5 41,393 38,221
Cost of inventories consumed EREFEKAR (557,020) (551,109)
Staff costs SN (472,265) (448,071)
Depreciation of items of property, plant #7% - BE MR #HE B
and equipment e 47,121) (50,420)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEERE (93,709) -
Utilities and consumables NHFZ S KB R (81,707) (77,498)
Rental and related expenses e REBRAX (25,607) (139,875)
Other expenses HEmRAxZ (89,405) (89,722)
Finance costs B & R AR 7 (27,707) (1,870)
Share of losses of joint ventures R R /NIl SEi= (3,817) (3,803)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B AR R 6 138,122 167,981
Income tax expense FTiS# 5 & 10 (45,276) (50,975)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EKEEHEF 92,846 117,006
Attributable to: FEEBR
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZFEWN 91,283 115,173
Non-controlling interests I 2 PR A 25 1,563 1,833
92,846 117,006
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ZAAGIZERESES
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF ANEEZEREF
THE COMPANY 12
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EXREEARE D) 8.52 10.80

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in FANEZREZFBRPERERMFT11H#
note 11 to the financial statements. = o



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AEZHEWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+ZA=+—"HLEFE

2019 2018
—z—hs LI
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR¥EFTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEREF 92,846 117,006
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) H#t2 Mz~ (&18)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may HRBEE BB AT e E#H D4
be reclassified to profit or loss in EERMNEMEE
subsequent periods: Wz (E8)
Exchange differences on translation of BRESINEBF2ER
foreign operations =7 3,511 (3,029)
Other comprehensive loss that will not REERBARK T2 5=
be reclassified to profit or loss in DEEBEGMAEMEE
subsequent periods: 518
Financial assets at fair value through other & QA FE A EMEE
comprehensive income: Wamze@MEE:
Changes in fair value NEERE (15,326) (20,700)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR rEEHMZEESE BE
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (11,815) (23,729)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRE2EBSEAE
FOR THE YEAR 81,031 93,277
Attributable to: EEBR
Owners of the Company KREIHB A 79,468 91,444
Non-controlling interests IR 1,563 1,833
81,031 93,277
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As at 31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Investments in joint ventures

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss

Prepayments and deposits

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and other receivables and
prepayments

Due from joint ventures

Pledged time deposits

Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Due to related companies
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Issued capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

YIP Shu Ming
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logz3
13

14(a)
15
16
17
17

19
24

18

16
20
20
20

14(b)
24

25
26

151,047
276,542
2,429
13,354

23,146
27,456
35,090
15,222

544,286

51,344
46,812
3,733
80,000
34,000
382,454
598,343
305,348
404
80,000
79,503
10,511
475,766

122,577

666,863

230,929
6,895

237,824

429,039

45,726
378,167

423,893
5,146

429,039

CHAN Man Wai
PR 32 {2
Director

BEF

47,075
62,148
2,696
80,000
64,000
400,354
656,273
289,926
353
79,200
14,171
383,650

272,623

509,413

6,780
6,780

502,633

45,496
450,950

496,446
6,187

502,633



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERREHR
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-FT-AFT-A=+—-RLLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-_2-N\F+-A=+—-RLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AARREARLE

Fair value
reserve of
financial assets

at fair value
through other
Share Statutory - comprehensive Exchange Non-
Issued premium general income Other fluctuation Retained controling Total
capital account reserve (‘FvoCr) reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BATEIA
Eft2ENEN
SHEEL
BEIRA ROER ErR-HREE ARERE 2R EXRDER 2 i kS g
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
h# ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
(note 23) (note 26) (note 26)
(#tos) (Hiz8) (Hiz8)
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NE-A-H 45,276 1,959 33,761 25,107 74,326 1,151 349,056 530,636 3438 534,074
Proft for the year ERER - - - - - - 115,173 15,173 1833 117,006
Other comprenensive loss for the year: EREBRERE:
Changes in fair value of financial assets BATEHALRZEK
at fair value through other ENEREELLT
comprehensive income, net of tax ExE B - - - 20,700) - - - 20,700) - 20,700)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign BHRNEBEN AT
operations - - - - - (3,029 - (3,029 - (3,029
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2ENEEE - - - 20,700) - 3.029) 115,173 91,444 1,833 93217
Issue of shares under share award plan RERD B3 EETRE 25) & (¢) 20 789 - - - - - 8,114 - 8,114
Contributions from non-controling interests FrhERER - - - - - - - - 1,300 1,300
Dividends paid to non-controling interests TRFEERERRS - - - - - - - - 384) 384)
Final 2017 dividend declared SR-E-tERERS - - - - - - (103,228 (103,228 - (103,228)
Interim 2018 special dividend “R-N\ERERTIRE - - - - - - (30520) (30520) - (30520)
Transfer to retained profits ERERTEA - - (605) - - - 605 - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NETZA=1-H 45,49 9,853 33,156 4407 74,326' (1878 331,086 496,446 6,187 502,633
ANNUAL REPORT 2019 3§ 92



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERRBER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-—NAF+_A=Z+—BHIL=FE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z-—-NAEF+-A=+-HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FNTREAEE
Fair value
Share Statutory reserve of Exchange Non-
Issued premium general financial assets Other fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve at FVOCI reserve reserve profits interests equity
RAFEIA
Ht2EREN
EREEL
BRARE ROEE ER-REE LAERE ERE EXRDEA REER & FERES aiE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 ARETR  ARBTZ ARMTr AR%TR ARETr  AR%Tn ARETr  AR¥Tn ARMTR  ARETR
(note 25) (note 26) (note 26)
(K#25) (H#2) (H#2)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+ZA=+-H 45,496 9,853 33,156 4407 74,326 (1,878) 331,086 496,446 6,187 502,633
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16 RRERUHELENZ6R
A 22 - - = = = = (39,014) (39,014) (780) (39,794)
At 1 January 2019 (restated) RZF-NF-A-BEE]) 4549 9,853 33,156 4407 74,326 (1,878) 292,072 457432 5407 462,839
Profit for the year Efgdl - - - - - - 91,283 91,283 1,563 92,846
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FRALRERE:
Changes in fair value of financial assets at far EATEHAARZEN
value through other comprehensive k- PAN
income, et of tax ERE Hk - - - (15,326) - - - (15,326) - (15,326)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign BERNEBELER
operations = = = = = 3511 = 3511 = 3511
Total comprehensive income for the year FRREREEE = = = (15,326) = 3511 91,283 79,468 1,563 81,031
Issue of shares under share award plan BERGEDH ARG 2500 o) 230 5,83 - - - - - 6,063 - 6,063
Dividends paid to non-controling interests THFERRESRS = = = = = = = = (1,824) (1,824)
Final 2018 dividend declared ER-2-\EXRERS - - - - - - (86,940) (86,940) - (86,940)
Interim 2019 special dividend ZI-NEREERIRS - - - - - - (82,130) (82,130) - (32,130)
Transfer from retained profits BRERTEA - - 1,456 - - - (1,456) - - -
At 31 December 2019 RZF-AE+ZA=1-R 45712 15,686" 84512 (10919 74.326° 1608 2688 423898 5146 429,009

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * WERBEEREPESREVBRERNES
RMB378,167,000 (2018: RMB450,950,000) in the consolidated B AR ®378,167,000L (ZZE—N\F : A
statement of financial position. R #450,950,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T—NWF+_A=+—HIFE

2018
—E-N\F
Notes RMB’000
k3 ARMF T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETBHFRERERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 750 Al ) 138,122 167,981
Adjustments for: P
Finance costs B AR 7 27,707 1,870
Interest income B A 5 (6,003) (5,567)
Depreciation of items of property, N YR
plant and equipment EHRTE 6 47,121 50,420
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 6 93,709 —
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 6 1,255 1,226
Loss on disposal of items of property, ’%%% CE R
plant and equipment HEEBEE BB 6 345 603
Impairment of property, plant and %% % E K&
equipment BRE 589 -
Impairment of right-of-use assets ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%?ﬁ“ﬁ 6 1,372 —
Gain on disposal of financial asset at HEZAFEEGTA
fair value through profit or loss BameREEN
W &5 5 = (3,992)
Impairment of a loan to a joint venture ¥ — & & A 7Y
and an amount due from a joint ERkEK—MEE
venture BRRIFIEZRE 6 511 2,366
Share of losses of joint ventures JE{E&Z N R EIB 3,817 3,803
Equity-settled share award plan IR A 45 B AR 19 22 B
expense FrEIRX 27 6,063 8,114
314,608 226,824
Increase in inventories FELE N (4,269) (2,655)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other B 5 &% £ i ek 28
receivables and prepayments B FER L,
(&) 10,300 (9,348)
Increase in trade and other payables 8 5 K H th &~ 5k I8
2 15,422 26,273
Increase in amounts due from joint FEUR A & A R FIE 1 AN
ventures (1,037) (2,810)
Increase in amounts due to related FE - B & 2 B SR IE 3 hA
companies 51 182
Cash generated from operations KEEHMERE 335,075 238,466
Interest paid g H B (2,151) (1,870)
Interest element of lease payments HENF Zﬂ B (25,556) —
Income taxes paid BENER (46,819) (49,658)
Net cash flows from operating activites K& EEMFIRETRE
-t 260,549 186,938
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REREMNER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_ZT—hAhF+-_A=+—HILHFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Capital injection to joint ventures

Loan advance to a joint venture

Purchases of financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss

Decrease/(increase) in time deposits

Net cash flows used in investing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Dividends paid

Contributions from non-controlling
interests

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests

Principal portion of lease payments

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes,
net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity of less than three months
when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
the consolidated statement of cash
flows
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H1 &t

18

20

20

6,003

(59,305)

(12,1(5)

(27,456)

30,000

(62,860)

80,000
(79,200)
(119,070)

(1,824)
(98,640)

(218,734)

(21,045)
400,354
3,145

382,454

293,195

89,259

382,454

2018
— N\
RMB’000
ARBETT

5,567
(57,030)

183
(2,442)

(1,500)

29,030
(60,000)

(86,192)

79,200
(70,550)
(133,748)

1,300
(384)

(124,182)

(23,436)
429,804
(6,014)

400,354

275,986

124,368

400,354



31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the
Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and
its principal place of business is located at Unit 3, 10th
Floor, Greenfield Tower, Concordia Plaza, No. 1 Science
Museum Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the vyear, the Group was principally engaged in
restaurant operations and food productions.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/
establishment registered share
Name and operations capital
EMRYL/RLIk BRAOLER/
£ BEME SR A
Beijing Chaobei Tang Palace Seafood People’s Republic of HK$3,000,000
Restaurant F & B Co., Ltd.””" China (the “PRC")/ 3,000,000/% 7
TR EESERHRRAERAR Mainland China
hEARAME ([F
Bl)/hEA
Beijing Chaowang Tang Palace Seafood ~PRC/Mainland China HK$3,000,000
Restaurant Co., Ltd.”"" mE/hE R 3,000,000/ 7
TRBEEEEERERAR
Beijing Haoyuan Tang Palace Seafood ~ PRC/Mainland China RMBS,000,000
Restaurant Co., Ltd.”" mE/HmEMY  ARS3,0000007T

tREBEEEEHERAT "

FE(hE)ERERAR(ARRFLD
RBBRATENASHESTMK L
BHREBRLG  EROREBHE
REMARRB (B £ &
X A) A 7 i 9% =8 B2 {32 74 Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands -
MEFELEMBUREBNERS
BB R A B % m 03T o

FRA AEEIERFEEREZERR
A EE o

TEMBRARFBNAT

Percentage of
equity interest
indirectly attributable

to the Company Principal activities

KRR EERERE
Bat FTEEK
2018
—E-N\E
100 100 Restaurant operations
BEER
100 100 Restaurant operations
BEER
100 100 Restaurant operations
mEEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% 3 3R B &

31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

96

follows: (Continued)

Name

=t

Beijing Mingzu Tang Palace Seafood
Restaurant Co., Ltd.”"
TRERESBEHAERRA

Beijing New Century Tang Palace
Seafood Restaurant Co., Ltd.””"
LRHt EETESEARAT

Beiling Well Excellent Tang Palace
F & B Co., Ltd.”"
IREEEEHARERAA

Beijing Well Excellent Tang Palace
Seafood Restaurant Co., Ltd.””
L REEETRRHERAT

Cheng Du Tang Palace Social Place
Catering Management Co., Ltd.”
KBEBRERERFRAA"

Cheng Du Well Excellent Tang Palace
Catering Management Co., Ltd.”""
RERERERRERERAT

Dongguan Expo Tang Palace Seafood
Restaurant Co., Ltd.”"

REEBEEEHHARAT

Hangzhou Well Excellent Tang Palace
Seafood Restaurant Co., Ltd.””"
AMEEESERGERAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operations
SRR BIR
B

PRC/Mainland China

hE /B

PRCG/Mainland China
FE/REA

PRC/Mainland China
FE/RE AL

PRC/Mainland China
wE/RERL

PRCG/Mainland China
FE/REA

PRC/Mainland China
FE/RE AL

PRC/Mainland China
wE/RERL

PRCG/Mainland China
FE/ PR

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

Issued ordinary/
registered share
capital
BROLER/
BTN

RMB5,000,000
A R #£5,000,0007T

RMB3,000,000
A K. #3,000,0007

HK$3,000,000
3,000,0007% 7T

RMB5,000,000
A R #5,000,0007T

RMB100,000
AR 100,0007C

RMB100,000
A R #100,0007T

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000 7

RMB3,000,000
A K. #3,000,0007

TEMBARAFEOT  (B)

Percentage of
equity interest

indirectly attributable

to the Company

FAREERERE
Bk

2018

—T-0\F

100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities

TEXRH

Restaurant operations
LegE

Restaurant operations
SEEE

Restaurant operations
weEE

Restaurant operations
KegE

Restaurant operations
SEEE

Restaurant operations
BeEE

Restaurant operations
megE

Restaurant operations
SEEE



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 3 3% BT &%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (Continued)

Name

=1

Ninja House Jiangnan Cuisine F & B
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.””"

REBIE-SRHRRINER
DA

Prosperous Tang F&B Group Limited
BERREEFRAA

Shanghai Changning Tang Palace
Seafood Restaurant Co., Ltd.””"

LERRETERBARAD

Shanghai Honggiao Tang Palace Seafood
Restaurant Co., Ltd.”"

PBUREEEEREARAR "

Shanghai Kang Feng Food Co., Ltd.
(Formerly known as Shanghai Tang
Palace Food Co., Ltd.)""
TERERMBARAA
(AIBAELBEERMERRRA) "

Shanghai Minhang Mixc Tang Palace
F&B Co., Ltd.”"

TERTEREREREROA

Shanghai Minhang Tang Palace Seafood
Restaurant Co., Ltd.”"

LERTEEEERERAR "

Shanghai Pudong Tang Palace Seafood
Restaurant Co., Ltd.”"

CEREEEERBARAD

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operations
HMRL/ HYR
BEME

PRC/Mainland China
wE /BB RL

Hong Kong
&5

PRC/Mainland China
wE/ BB R

PRC/Mainland China
wE/HE R

PRC/Mainland China

TE /B

PRC/Mainland China

T/ B

PRC/Mainland China
wE/HE R

PRC/Mainland China
wE/HE R

Issued ordinary/
registered share

capital
LER/
TR A

B&fT

HK$2,000,000
2,000,000 7

HK$100,000
100,000 7T

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000 7

RMB6,000,000
A E #6,000,0007C

USD150,000

150,000 7T

RMB100,000

AE%100,0007T

USD480,000
480,000% 7T

USD150,000
150,000 7T

TEMBR

31 December 2019

—NWE+-A=+—H

Percentage of
equity interest

indirectly attributable

to the Company

ALAREEERE
BAL

2018

-N\F
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 -
100 100
100 100

AEEWT :

(#)

Principal activities

IRER

Restaurant operations
ReE®

Intangible assets holding

BEEVEE
Restaurant operations

G2ER

Restaurant operations
feZ®

Food production

RmEE

Restaurant operations
Regw

Restaurant operations
KeEw

Restaurant operations
KeEw
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 December 2019

RZEBE—-NF+_A=+—H

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (Continued)

Name

=1

Shanghai Putuo Tang Palace F & B

Co., Ltd.”"

LEERERERARLT

Shanghai Well Excellent Tang Palace
F & B Co., Ltd.”"
LESEEEERERAT

Shanghai Yangpu Tang Palace Seafood

Restaurant Co., Ltd.””"

LEERETERBAERAD

Shanghai Yunshang Tang Palace F&B

Co., Ltd.”"

Shanghai Zhabei Tang Palace Seafood

Restaurant Co., Ltd.””"

LERLEEEERERAR "

Shenzhen Tang Palace Social Place
Catering Management Co., Ltd.”

RIHESNE

EREREARAA"

Shenzhen Well Excellent Tang Palace
F &B Co., Ltd.""
R ERtETRABRAR "

Suzhou Well Excellent Tang Palace
Seafood Restaurant Co., Ltd.””"
BHEEEESHBERAA

98

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operations
HMRL/ HYR
BEME

PRC/Mainland China
wE /BB RL

PRC/Mainland China
wE/ BB R

PRC/Mainland China
wE/ BB R

PRC/Mainland China
wE/HE R

PRC/Mainland China
wE /BB RL

PRC/Mainland China
wE/HE R

PRC/Mainland China
wE/HE R

PRC/Mainland China
wE/HE R

Issued ordinary/
registered share
capital
BRAEER/
TR A

RMB500,000
A B #500,0007C

RMB3,000,000
A B #3,000,0007C

HK$12,000,000
12,000,0007% 7.

RMB100,000
A K #100,0007C

HK$1,000,000
1,000,0007% 7

RMB50,000
A K #50,0007T

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000 7

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000 7

TEMBARAFEOT  (B)

Percentage of
equity interest

indirectly attributable

to the Company

ALAREEERE
BAL

2018

“EF-N\%

100 100
100 100
100 100
100 -
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities

IRER

Restaurant operations
ReE®

Restaurant operations
ReE®

Restaurant operations
ReE®

Restaurant operations
feZ®

Restaurant operations
Regw

Restaurant operations
Regw

Restaurant operations
Regw

Restaurant operations
KeEw



Notes to the Financial Statements

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (Continued)

Name

=

Tang Dian (Shanghai) Catering
~ Management Co., Ltd.”
EH(LB)ERERARAA"

Tang Dian Shayue (Shanghai) Catering
Management Co., Ltd.”"
BV E (LS ERERERAA

Tang Dian Yueshu (Shanghai) Catering
Management Co., Ltd.”"
BREH (L8 ERERERAA"

Tang Palace Social Place Catering
Limited*

EE EERBRAA

Tang Palace Trading (Shanghai)

Co., Ltd.”™"
EZE5(LB)ARAR""

Vital Pepper (Beijing) Catering

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operations
EMRL/ IR
BEME

PRC/Mainland China
mE L E R

PRC/Mainland China
RE/FER

PRC/Mainland China
RE/FEA

Hong Kong
BA

PRC/Mainland China
RE/FER

PRC/Mainland China

Issued ordinary/
registered share
capital
BROLER/
SR A

RMB5,000,000
A K #5,000,0007C

RMB100,000
AR #100,0007T

RMB100,000
A E#100,0007T

HK$10,000,000
10,000,0007% 7.

USD2,100,000
2,100,000% 7T

RMB21,000,000

Management Co., Ltd.”"" wE/HmERE  ARE21,000,0007T
BENRRER)ERERER QAT
* Not audited by Emst & Young, Hong Kong or another member

firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

*k

enterprises under Mainland China law.

disclosed above are for identification only.

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned

The company names in English of the Company’s subsidiaries

Bt 75 Rk B &
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TEMBRARAE

Percentage of
equity interest
indirectly attributable
to the Company

ARARBEERE
BAL

2018

—F-N\%

70 70

70 -

70 -
100 100
100 100
90 90

m ()

Principal activities

IRER

Restaurant operations

Restaurant operations
mEEE

Restaurant operations

Restaurant operations

Retail and wholesale
trading
TERKEES

Restaurant operations

* kG EHA(FEREME
KERTENEBARRBEKE R A

P & %

c o REHBARRET AR E
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The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. Details of other subsidiaries had
not been included as, in the opinion of the directors, they
did not have any material impact on these financial
statements.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for certain financial instruments
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
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If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises

() the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the

subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling

interest and (i) the cumulative translation differences

recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the

consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment

retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or

loss. The Group’s share of components previously

recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to

profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the

same basis as would be required if the Group had directly

disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

102

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
Leases

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKAS 19, and
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which
are not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements, the nature and the impact of the new and
revised HKFRSs are described below:

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to account for all leases under a
single on-balance sheet model to recognise and
measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except
for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting
under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
HKAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar principles as
in HKAS 17.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application
of 1 January 2019. Under this method, the standard
has been applied retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initial adoption recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at 1 January
2019, and the comparative information for 2018 was
not restated and continued to be reported under
HKAS 17 and related interpretations.
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Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset and the right to direct the use of the identified
asset. The Group elected to use the transition
practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied
only to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the
date of initial application. Contracts that were not
identified as leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a
lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to
contracts entered into or changed on or after 1
January 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
properties. As a lessee, the Group previously classified
leases as either finance leases or operating leases
based on the assessment of whether the lease
transferred substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16,
the Group applies a single approach to recognise and
measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all
leases, except for two elective exemptions for leases
of low-value assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis)
and leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) (elected by class of underlying
asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term commencing from 1 January 2019, the Group
recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the
right-of-use assets and interest accrued on the
outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised
based on the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate at 1 January 2019. The right-of-use assets were
recognised based on the carrying amount as if the
standard had always been applied, except for the
incremental borrowing rate where the Group applied
the incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019.
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Impact on transition (Continued)

All these assets were assessed for any impairment
based on HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to
present the right-of-use assets separately in the
statement of financial position.

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January
2019:

° Applying the short-term lease exemptions to
leases with a lease term that ends within 12
months from the date of initial application

° Using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend/
terminate the lease

° Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics
when measuring the lease liabilities at 1 January
2019

° Relying on the entity’s assessment of whether
leases were onerous by applying HKAS 37
immediately before 1 January 2019 as an
alternative to performing an impairment review

° Excluding initial direct costs from the
measurement of the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application when applying HKFRS
16.C8(b)(i)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Accordingly, the Group recognised right-of-use assets
of RMB277,249,000 and lease liabilities of
RMB314,739,000 as at 1 January 2019. Prepaid rental
of RMB15,119,000 was derecognised, resulting in a
decrease in trade and other receivables and
prepayments of RMB15,119,000 as at 1 January
2019. Deferred tax assets increased by
RMB12,815,000 as at 1 January 2019 because of the
tax impact on the change in assets and liabilities,
resulting in a net decrease in retained profits of
RMB39,014,000 and a decrease in non-controlling
interests of RMB780,000. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 was 7.8%.
There is no significant difference between the amount
of the operating lease commitments at 31 December
2018 disclosed applying the previous accounting
standards, discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate at 1 January 2019 and the amount of lease
liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at 1 January 2019.
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Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope
exclusion of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an
associate or joint venture to which the equity method
is applied and does not include long-term interests
that in substance form part of the net investment in
the associate or joint venture, to which the equity
method has not been applied. Therefore, an entity
applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in
accounting for such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is
then applied to the net investment, which includes the
long-term interests, only in the context of recognising
losses of an associate or joint venture and impairment
of the net investment in the associate or joint venture.
The Group assessed its business model for its long-
term interests in associates and joint ventures upon
adoption of the amendments on 1 January 2019 and
concluded that the long-term interests in associates
and joint ventures continued to be measured at
amortised cost in accordance with HKFRS 9.
Accordingly, the amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of
HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes
or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it
specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses (i)
whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments
separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes about
the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii) how an entity determines taxable profits
or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity
considers changes in facts and circumstances. Upon
adoption of the interpretation, the Group considered
whether it has any uncertain tax positions arising from
the transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based on
the Group’s tax compliance and transfer pricing study,
the Group determined that it is probable that its
transfer pricing policy will be accepted by the tax
authorities. Accordingly, the interpretation did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform’

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’

and HKAS 8

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to
be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can
exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and
acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on
goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess
whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
transactions or other events that occur on or after the date
of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address
the effects of interbank offered rate reform on financial
reporting. The amendments provide temporary reliefs which
enable hedge accounting to continue during the period of
uncertainty before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors
about their hedging relationships which are directly affected
by these uncertainties. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Early
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain
or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investor’'s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.

TP B REEMNFH - BEGAHE
AIEIR R ERMBHRELAETHR 2
BRI E ERORRITREH/ SN EH Y
BHBIEE ZFETRETESR
BIRE M R E LR 2 T HEE MR A #
BETHN SRR 2 RS
I o WS SR FERTRF] AR ARKRE
ERHEMEREIRSTTRERREY
E7HNPBERZIBINER - ZFEFT
BoF_TFE-F B Z2&RABD
FEHRER  AJRERA - AHZE
ERIH T U RNEBP B RERERE
MERXTE -

EBVBRELANBEI0ERES ST
HERFR(ZT——F) 2 BFT#H Y
EBVBRELANBIORERE S ST
HREBFK(ZE——F)2HAARK
BEHEABREARRAERAZEE
EHESTEMERTZA— BB
% ZEBIRTE  EREERAERE
ARIREGERAIZEAMNEEH ST
BN —EEBR BRAZHRE
IEB -EXHGPRTEX—BEDR
PEERN HZRXRIELEZWREZRE
BRZEEEZERRNER  HEEN
THEBEREERZBEQARREER
A2 ABR- %%{Jamﬁﬁ
BA-HFBgstimreo RN _E—<F
— ABIBR BB RS ERE105% R
EE O ERERE(ZE——F) 2
EETH A ER S AR B - M A8
SIEBBHBEREBEARAREER
AN REETKERZNRTERE
TE oo R RS E R AHERA -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is
material if it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions made by the primary users. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
where exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting
less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.
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The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s investments in joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
joint venture upon loss of joint control and the fair value of
the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired assets.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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The Group measures its equity and debt investments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or

disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within

the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the

lowest level
measurement

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

input that is significant to the fair value

as

a whole:

based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial

statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines

whether transfers have occurred between levels in the

hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)  (Continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements The shorter of the period of the
respective lease or 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and 20%-33%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%-25%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Purchased trademarks, licenses and concession right are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised
on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
10 years.

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Where applicable, the cost of a right-of-use
asset also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Buildings 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings.
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(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value,
plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-
by-instrument basis.
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Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (Continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the
cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with
net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.
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The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, amounts due to related companies, lease liabilities
and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Bt 75 Rk B &

31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

REXRERE RITIKEEREERAE
BRAMEE R BN AT E  BRIERER
TER/MTRE EXBR TR
Y- BERERIEERLIRERF
REETHEREFE HEaAEBR
=R

8 55 0 7 R 5 T M B B T A 4 S
241 R O R R T o R — 5 0
B R B R 4 5B o IR R 2 3 A
NBEREBA R AR -

ERERTELERE BUBH
wo EBUHER A’ -

m—ERAERABERKER —EX
TEXBAGRTANSZ—HEREA
BB HIRA B ENERREAE
& Bk - R %A B #2818 2R 1 BUK i
REREAELERNAGERIE MM
ENREEZERNBERER -

133



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% 3 3R B &

31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

134

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.
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Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Commission income is recognised at the later or when: (i)
the subsequent sales occurs; and (i) the performance
obligation to which some or all of the sales-based
commission has been allocated is satisfied.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).

The Company operates a share award plan for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).
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The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 27 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfiled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered
to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified, if the original terms of the award are
met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially at
fair value at the grant date using the Black-Scholes formula,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
instruments were granted. The fair value is expensed over
the period until the vesting date with recognition of a
corresponding liability. The liability is measured at the end of
each reporting period up to and including the settlement
date, with changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed
and declared.
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These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

AMBHRETIAAREZY - ARK
RARBNNERZRER - KNEE
BETEEBATREEDEEE M
EERBMBHBERANIAEB G AR
ERGFE - HAKBEERIKZINE
RHNHERXZBEHAREFSEENER
N EHERAR - UINEREMH
ERBEERBBERBEHRRNERN
REENEXRE FHENBREEER
BELAZESZRANBRRER -

RESL KA IASNE ST ERFEE B IR B
BRENXZEHERNEXRBZE -
f“ﬁé%%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
FEFEZANERESTRE - BE
BAVEFENIEBEREELEZK
B EREERZRBZATEEZD
EfzWasEERE (EQFER
SREREEREtLEERERBRER
RZER EBREZETNINE
fozmKmRBRRAER)



Notes to the Financial Statements

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries are
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the subsidiaries operate outside
Mainland China are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of the subsidiaries operate outside
Mainland China which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
Group has to exercise judgement in the area of asset
impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred that may affect the asset value or such event
affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or
derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

The Group depreciates the different classes of property,
plant and equipment on a straight-line basis at applicable
depreciation rates over the estimated useful life. The useful
life is estimated with reference to the wear and tear history
of property, plant and equipment. The estimated useful life
reflects the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment.

The Group determines whether property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are impaired when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of
the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair values less costs of disposal is based
on available date from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
price less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. Further details are given in notes 13
and 14 to the financial statements.
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The Group determines whether intangible assets are
impaired whenever there are any indicators of impairment.
This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of intangible
assets at 31 December 2019 was RMB2,429,000 (2018:
RMB3,680,000). Further details are given in note 15 to the
financial statements.

The Group determines the fair values of unlisted equity and
debt investments based on quoted market prices whenever
possible. If such quoted market prices are not available or
an active market does not exist, the Group determines the
fair values based on internal developed models which make
use of market parameters, such as net assets of the
underlying investments. Any changes in these parameters
can affect the estimates of the fair values of these
investments. The Group classifies the fair values of the
unlisted equity and debt investments as Level 3. The fair
values of the unlisted equity and debt investments at 31
December 2019 were RMB13,842,000 (2018:
RMB15,000,000) and RMB27,456,000 (2018: Nil),
respectively. Further details are included in note 17 to the
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions)
or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates
the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone
credit rating).
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For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on geographical areas and has four
reportable operating segments as follows:

(i) the Southern China region;

(i) the Eastern China region;

(i) the Northern China region; and

(iv)  the Western China region.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted operating profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax
except that certain interest income, share of losses of joint
ventures, unallocated expenses and finance costs (other
than interest on lease liabilities) are excluded from such
measurement.

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

There was no revenue from customers individually
contributing over 10% to the total revenue of the Group.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFWLER B)
(Continued)
Information about major customers (Continued) EFEER&EH &)
Segment information about the business is presented B2 oMEHENNNAT :
below:
Northern China Eastern China Southern China Western China Total
FELH FERP PEEH FEED E

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
S0 PSR —F-F Bl —F-F EeERgltal —2-AF EEESgit —F-af kit
FRMB000 I Y= (0o RIVIE 1000 e 150/l RIVIE 000 N - IS RIVE'000 SNz 400 ol = RVIB 000 I V=0l
WNSLERN ARETR PSS EEE ARETL PNSLEPA ARBTT PNLESN ARETL PNSEPE ARETT

Segment revenue (1oe 5 EL ¢
Sales to external customers NBEPHE 416,331 400,331 576072 595,751 378393 300,943 124,091 105103 1495087 1,492,128
Inter-segment sales PHRHEE — - 58,700 60,872 — - — - 58,700 60,872

416,331 400,331 634,772 656,623 378,393 390,043 124,291 105103 1,853,787 1,553,000

Reconciliation: b
Elimination of inter-segment sales 7 57 # 5 & (58,700) (60,872)
Revenue ¢4 1495087 1492128
Segment results PHEE 52,879 61,695 73,059 69,619 33,577 55,028 25,785 22,089 190,300 208,431
Reconciliation: b
Interest income LY ON 710 1,051
Share of losses of joint ventures B4 &R AIEE (3,817) (3,808)
Unallocated expenses FAEBER (46,920) (36,028)
Finance costs (other than BANA(FRE

interest on lease liabilties) HERERS) (2,151) (1,870)
Profit before tax BRHAEF 138,122 167,981

Other segment information: ~ Eft 2 H&%
Depreciation of items of property, #% - BE Rk &

plant and equipment BEfE 8,597 7,566 16,930 20,151 15,518 17,722 6,076 4,981 47121 50,420
Depreciation of items of FREAEER
right-of-use assets ik 28,764 - 32,897 - 27,550 - 4,498 - 93,709 -
Amortisation of intanghble assets &/ & E# & 124 124 500 500 = - = - 624 624
Capital expenditure* AR 16,072 4,265 21,685 18,269 21,039 14,599 509 19,890 59,305 57,023
* Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and . BEARZEAREDE BERERER
equipment and intangible assets. BLEAE -
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about major customers (Continued)

For management purposes, segment revenue and segment
results are the two key indicators provided to the Group’s
chief operating decision maker to make decisions about the
resource allocation and to assess performance. No segment
asset and liability information is presented as, in the opinion
of the directors, such information is not a key indicator
provided to the Group’s chief operating decision maker.

The Group’s revenue arises from restaurant operations and
food productions.

Geographical information
All of the Group’s operations are located in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group’s revenue from

external customers and all of its non-current assets are
located in the PRC, including Hong Kong.
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WakHEMEKA
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: REBHKREITWOT

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ETF T
Revenue from contracts with customers & & #7425
Restaurant operations BELE 1,495,087 1,492,128
Revenue from contracts with customers EREHKE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information () Dz EH
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt AREETF T
Type of goods or services EmEREER
Revenue from restaurant operations EREZEREFA#
and total revenue from contracts Iy 2% 42 =8
with customers 1,495,087 1,492,128
Geographical markets i & %
Northern China o 4L D 416,331 400,331
Eastern China B R T 576,072 595,751
Southern China Bl 378,393 390,943
Western China B 7 R 124,291 105,103
Total revenue from contracts with EEEHl =B
customers 1,495,087 1,492,128
Timing of revenue recognition 1z 2 T 22 B A
At a point in time R — BB 1,495,087 1,492,128
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (Continued) 5, WaERHEMUWAE
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EESHWEE)
() Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) () D HFEWhm EFE)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from

contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed

in the segment information:

TRIEEP AR ER D
EREBENSENHEK:

2019 2018
—E-hF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt AR®ETF T
Revenue from contracts with EEAHNKWHE
customers
External customers INERE P 1,495,087 1,492,128
Intersegment sales o EP R BE S 58,700 60,872
1,553,787 1,553,000
Intersegment adjustments and R YV E Ik
eliminations (58,700) (60,872)
Total revenue from contracts with EREAHEEEE
customers 1,495,087 1,492,128

TRETHRBRERVBEEESR
BETHEIAR/AREHRNHKE
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of k-l

the reporting period:

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBEFTT
Revenue recognised that was included R 3R& VIS
in contract liabilities at the beginning &R & &H
of the reporting period: WEBRH WS 5
Restaurant operations B pE B 153,779 124,723
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Bt R 3R R Y =

31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (Continued) 5, WaERHEMUWAE
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EESHWE (&)
(i) Performance obligations (i) JEXIEF

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
is summarised below:

Restaurant operations

The performance obligation is satisfied when the
catering services have been provided to customers.
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on cash and credit card settlement. The credit
period is generally less than one month.

BERASRERAOEINERBM
LA

BHORERAEF REHERRSE
Bl AEBEREXFNRS
GREERERREREARE
H-FEEHBREIRN—M@A -

2019 2018

= NS -z
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Tx NREE

Other income Hib A
Bank interest income R1T R B A 6,003 5,567
Commission income el At 25,262 23,765
Gain on disposal of financial assets HEZRAFEGTABRD
at fair value through profit or loss TREEMNRE = 3,992
Government grants T 47 B 4,554 1,525
Others HAib 5,574 3,372
41,393 38,221
# Commission income represents commission received or # e R AERBEERLEEBE

receivable in respect of sales of tea related products.

MmO RRERZBE
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31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBZHAZFE MR, (E2)T

156

(crediting): H %8 :
2018
—E-N\F
Notes RMB’000
Hrat ARBTT
Depreciation of items of property, ME - BEMERE
plant and equipment HBZHE 13 47,121 50,420
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 14(a) 93,709 -
Amortisation of intangible assets BVEEEH 15 1,255 1,226
Minimum lease payments under operating & &M E 7 HEKME
leases IR — 108,829
Contingent rents under operating leases* &2 & 7 R~ = 7,278
Variable lease payments not included in T REEHREAEFE
the measurement of lease liabilities WA EREENK 14(c) 7,204 -
Auditor’s remuneration % B0 BN & 1,144 1,004
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME BEK
plant and equipment HBBEE 2 EE 345 603
Impairment of a loan to a joint venture ~ ¥ —MA & A EH
and an amount due from ERkER—FEE
a joint venture* NAFIEZRE 511 2,366
Impairment of property, plant and mE - -BELREZ
equipment RIE 13 589 —
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEEZRE 14(a) 1,372 -
Directors’ remuneration EEWE 8 9,913 10,664
Employee benefit expense (excluding EERAMAZ (TBIE
directors’ and chief executive’s EERITHAR
remuneration (note 8)): We) (i i8)
Wages and salaries TERF® 413,076 391,375
Equity-settled share award plan PARR 75 45 B B 1) 22
expense HEIRX 27 2,648 3,328
Pension scheme contributions (defined R iRk &t 2|4 &
contribution schemes)" (EBEHEREED 46,628 42,704
462,352 437,407
Foreign exchange differences, net EREEFRE 919 (2,748)
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continuea)

*

The contingent rents under operating leases are included in
“Rental and related expenses” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

> The impairment of a loan to a joint venture and an amount
due from a joint venture are included in “Other expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

" At 31 December 2019, the Group had no forfeited

contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension schemes in future years (2018: Nil).

FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Bt R 3R R Y =

31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

*

KEMEZIR BT ARAER
®ZHeREEMX ] H -

o H-RAERRNERKER M
SERAFBEZREFAGAER
RZITEMFEZ ]S -

" RZEBE—NE+-_A=+—0 K&
B 8 & 7] A 1E R R 2 R R B R R ET
BT ZERBRER(ZE—N

Interest on bank loans RITERF B
&

HEREFE

Interest on lease liabilities

F4E) o
Al & B A

RERADHWT :
2019 2018
=& QST WV
RMB’000 RMB’000
A% Tz N
2,151 1,870
25,556 —
27,707 1,870
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31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERITHARZHE
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, FR - ESERTHREBHR NS RIE L
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), R Al BB QB KB %E383(1)@)
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and b)) EMIERARI(FBEEENFE
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about BB FE2MIWEMT -

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2019 2018
- a7 BV
RMB’000 RMB’000
LAPl ARETT

Fees we 2,839 2,218
Other emoluments: HA B & -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ ~ 2B R E YR R 2,670 2,562
Performance related bonuses FRIBB AL 948 1,051
Equity-settled share award AR AR 4 8 2 Ik tn 528
plan expense (note 27) 51817 X (i 3%27) 3,415 4,786
Pension scheme contributions BIRET IR 41 47
7,074 8,446
9,913 10,664
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

B 7 R 2R M &
31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

BEERTHRERZHME ©)

(a) BIAFHRITEE

FRN INTFEILFNTESZ
wLMT

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARETT

Mr. Kwong Chi Keung BF 558 5 A&
Mr. Kwong Ping Man BB AR 32 5 A
Mr. Cheung Kin Ting, Alfred IR ERRE S A

251 202
251 202
251 202
753 606

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2018: Nil).

FA-BEEMENELIFNT
EENFM(—Z-NF:T)-
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31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERTHARZME &)
REMUNERATION (continuea)
(b) Executive directors and chief executive (b) BITEERTHAER
Salaries,
Performance allowances Pension  Equity-settled
related  and benefits scheme share award Total
Fees bonuses in kind  contributions  plan expense  remuneration
®EHE  He 2R REZERH
ne 24 ENFE BARHEET RBHEARX Bews
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETR AREFT ARETT ARETR
2019 ZE-NE
Executive directors: WTESE:
Mr. Yip Shu Ming (“Mr. Yip’) EHmsE(ER4E) 541 - 1,247 17 - 1,805
Mr. Chan Man Wai (“Mr. Chan’) B s ((REED) 502 - - 7 - 509
Mr. Ku Hok Chiu (“Mr. Ku") HEBRE(EEED 502 - - - - 502
Ms. Weng Peihe (“Ms. Weng")* SERET (SR 541 948 1,423 17 3,415 6,344
2,086 948 2,670 4 3,415 9,160
2018 —Z-N\F
Executive directors: 0TES:
Mr. Yip Shu Ming ERBEE 408 - 1,198 16 - 1,617
Mr. Chan Man Wai B %4 403 - - 15 - 418
Mr. Ku Hok Chiu HERBEAE 403 - - - - 408
Ms. Weng Peihe SERLL 408 1,051 1,364 16 4,786 7,620
1,612 1,051 2,562 47 4,786 10,058
* Ms. Weng is also the chief executive of the Group. BRTITARNEEBITHEH -
There was no arrangement under which a director or FAMBEZHEESHFETR

the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (2018: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining three (2018: three) highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of
the Company, are as follows:

Bt R 3R R Y =

31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

TEBREHESR

RERN hEERHEEREMA (=
Z-N\F - WMB)EF HMFBEERN
FiM s - RFEFEHT=H(ZF
—NF:ZR)EEFEEGEAAA
EEATRARNFMAEBZ27 W
™~

EXFeLEBEYH S
T A

PN E B D BB T 81 F X
RARET B 5K

Basic salaries and other benefits in kind
Performance related bonuses
Equity-settled share award plan expense
Pension scheme contributions

2019 2018
—z-n5 LI
RMB’000 RMB’000
NL b ARETT
3,141 3,093
2,067 2,413
2,648 3,328

122 113

7,978 8,947

The number of non-director and non-chief executive, highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

EETHFMBENFEERTHE
BORBHMESOABRMT -

Number of employees

A R#1,500,001TE
A FR#2,000,0007T
AR #4,000,0017T 2
A R #4,500,0007T
AR #5,000,0017T &
A R #5,500,0007T

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000

RMB4,000,001 to RMB4,500,000

RMB5,000,001 to RMB5,500,000

EEAH
2019 2018
—z-n5 EEENC;
2 2
1 j—
- 1
3 3
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31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

10.

162

INCOME TAX

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject
to income tax at the rate of 25% (2018: 25%). Taxes on
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

10. fT8H

NN DN i N NS PF
R RB25%(ZF — \F :25%) 2 Ff
198 o H fth3th 75 & FE R B s A B IE Y
BRAEBEEMEREER ZRTH

K -

2019 2018
—E-NhEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR FIT

Current — PRC BNEY —
Charge for the year RNEERXZ 37,600 44,488
Underprovision in prior years TEBRESR 110 452
Current — Hong Kong BNEl — &% 164 2,130
PRC withholding tax on dividend income f% 8 4% A 2 7 B 78 0 ¢ 5,286 4,447
Deferred (note 24) BT (ff it24) 2,116 (542)
Total tax charge for the year AEERERTAE 45,276 50,975
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A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the country in which the

Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled

to the tax expense at the effective tax

rate, and a

reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax
rate) to the effective tax rate, are as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate

Lower tax rates enacted by
local authority

Losses attributable to joint
ventures

Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous
periods

Effect of withholding tax on the
distributable profits of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for
tax

Tax losses utilised from
previous periods

Tax losses not recognised

Others

Tax charge at the Group’s
effective rate for the year

Bx i B 4t 7

1R E B R
2 BT SR
&

BE QARG
EE

% 55 A 5 i B AR
IR PR 1E S B

& B BB
N A A 7K
S | 9 B R
MR E

BAADZ WA

TEEMM Z F XX

PHBEHEZ
T 75 85 18
AR Z B
B
Hit

FRRAEE
PR

Z TR IR F X

138,122

34,531

(1,238)

1,072

110

5,286
(186)

4,862

1,384
(545)

45,276

B 7% SRR B A

31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

RERARARR REXED W E R A
FTFE B R 20K FE B8 K I BB A A R
BHAEBMERERREAE M
HERZEER RERRE (BUEEN
R)VERFEERBEHERNAT -

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000 %
ARBEFTT %
167,981
25.0 41,995 25.0
(0.9) (1,055) (0.6)
0.8 951 0.6
0.1 452 0.3
3.8 4,447 2.6
(0.1) (1,164) (0.7)
3.5 1,688 1.0
- (92) 0.1)
1.0 997 0.6
(0.4) 2,756 1.6
32.8 50,975 30.3
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31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

11.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

164

DIVIDENDS 11. K&
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARMF T
Interim special dividend — HK3.40 cents A Hi 45 Bl % &
(2018: HK3.40 cents) per ordinary share  — &% & 3@ A% 3.4075 (Il
(ZZ—)\F : 34081 32,130 30,520
Proposed final dividend — Nil BEAHRE
(2018: HK9.20 cents per ordinary share) — (=& — )\ :
B I8 LB A%9.2078 1) - 84,653
32,130 115,173

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,071,760,226 (2018:
1,066,669,870) in issue during the year. =i

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in

issue during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (HREl) IR BIR

12. AR EEBEREREAAEA
ZEBRER

BREABFNSENIREARAAGLE
BREREEABGERFERNRFEA
B BT E AR N 9 801,071,760,226
B (= Z — )\ 4F : 1,066,669,8708%) &t

REE-_ZE—NFRZZE—NF+=
A=+ BLEFER AEETED
BITEBEEEET @RS -
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31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. AR EBERERIEEAREMN
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE ZEBRER &)
COMPANY (Continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are BRERREERNOGE T EKE
based on:

2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBETT

Earnings ZF

Profit attributable to ordinary equity KA LM ERESA
holders of the Company, used in the FEARER - ARETE SR
basic and diluted earnings per share EXRBERTF

calculations 91,283 115,173

Number of shares

1 2

2019 2018
—2-n7 RN

Shares B 17
Weighted average number of ordinary ARFAESRERREE
shares in issue during the year used in B FHFANE FEITE B
the basic and diluted earnings per share AN F ¥ &
calculations 1,071,760,226 1,066,669,870
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31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME BERKE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total

BE KE
HEXE K&t RE ot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARB TR

31 December 2019 —E-hE+ZA
=+-H
At 31 December 2018 and AT —N\F
at 1 January 2019:; +-A=+—-H
RZF—NEF
—A—H:
Cost [N 463,075 93,325 4,297 560,697
Accumulated depreciation R HERRE
and impairment (350,671) (66,965) (3,330) (420,966)
Net carrying amount REFE 112,404 26,360 967 139,731

At 1 January 2019, net of RZE-—h&§—A

accumulated depreciation —B k&

and impairment HERRE 112,404 26,360 967 139,731
Additions nNE 44,756 14,252 297 59,305
Depreciation provided during & R & B &

the year (37,307) (9,514) (300) (47,121)
Impairment B (369) (220) - (589)
Disposals HE (135) (182) (28) (345)
Exchange realignment I 5T 55 1 = 66

At 31 December 2019, net of R —Z—HF

accumulated depreciation +-A=+-—
and impairment B Mk &
mERAE 119,404 30,707 936 151,047
At 31 December 2019: RZE-NF
+=ZA=+—-8:
Cost BN 504,887 104,695 4,211 613,793
Accumulated depreciation ZEERAE
and impairment (385,483) (73,988) (3,275) (462,746)
Net carrying amount RESE 119,404 30,707 936 151,047
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31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ -BMERRE@)
(Continued)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and

improvements equipment  Motor vehicles Total
RE-KE

HEEE B AE wEt

RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARBTR ARBTT ARETT

31 December 2018 —E-N\E+ZH
=+-H
At 1 January 2018; RZE—-N\F
—A—8:
Cost B AR 415,252 87,682 4,270 507,204
Accumulated depreciation ZHMERAE
and impairment (310,407) (60,014) (3,320) (373,741)
Net carrying amount REFE 104,845 27,668 950 133,463

At 1 January 2018, net of RZZ—NF—A

accumulated depreciation —B - Nk &a

and impairment TERRE 104,845 27,668 950 133,463
Additions NE 47,900 8,603 527 57,030
Depreciation provided during & R & B &

the year (40,548) (9,550) (322) (50,420)
Disposals HE (190) (408) (188) (786)
Exchange realignment B H R 397 47 - 444

At 31 December 2018, net of RZZE—\F

accumulated depreciation +-A=+-—
and impairment B Mk R
mERAE 112,404 26,360 967 139,731
At 31 December 2018: RZE-N\F
+=ZA=+—-8:
Cost BN 463,075 93,325 4,297 560,697
Accumulated depreciation ZHMERAE
and impairment (350,671) (66,965) (3,330) (420,966)
Net carrying amount REEE 112,404 26,360 967 139,731
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31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

14. LEASES 14. &

The Group as a lessee XREEBEEAA

The Group has lease contracts for various items of AEBERZEWXBEGTBEEHES
properties. The leases generally have lease terms between 2 B ZEHEMNHBE-RBNITMET
and 10 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from FomEMs  AEETEERS>HEE
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the SNEFEEEEFEXR ZEMEE
Group. There are several lease contracts that include BHBEELERRK LEERERTER
extension and termination options and variable lease ENR ELFHBR TR -

payments, which are further discussed below.

(@)  Right-of-use assets (@ FHEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use REBRFANGEAREERE
assets and the movements during the year are as ER N
follows:
Buildings
LY/
RMB’000
AR T
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE—-NA¥—HF—H 277,249
Additions NE 93,901
Depreciation charge WERX (93,709)
Impairment during the year FRFE (1,372)
Exchange realignment E H 473
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZZT—-—NF+A
=+—H 276,542
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31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

14. LEASES (Continued) 14. HE#®)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) XEEEBRBANE)
(b) Lease liabilities b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the FANHEEEREmMEREDN
movements during the year are as follows: T~
2019
—E-hF
Lease
liabilities
HESE
RMB’000
AR T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—H®HERE@E 314,739
New leases HHEE 93,901
Accretion of interest recognised during the year FRNEEREFHE 25,556
Payments BE:N (124,196)
Exchange realignment E H 432
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=+—H®HEEAE 310,432
Analysed into: ki1
Current portion Bl HA &8 > 79,503
Non-current portion JE BN ER 56 230,929
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HEAGENIHBE S TERENH
note 33 to the financial statements. 74 ¥R 2% M1 5E33 o
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31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

170

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
leases are as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
Variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities
(included in rental and related expenses)
Impairment of right-of-use assets

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

The Group leased a number of restaurants which
contains variable lease payment terms that are based
on the Group’s turnover generated from the
restaurants. There are also minimum monthly base
rental arrangements for these leases. The amount of
the fixed and variable lease payments recognised in
profit or loss for the current year for these leases are
RMB122,476,000 and RMB7,204,000, respectively.

The total cash outflow for leases are disclosed in note
28(c) to the financial statements.

MEBEmERNEEEEKED

T -
HEBEHNEA 25,556
FREESENTERAX 93,709
TeREMRERETE

MAEEENR

(Gt A& LMABAS) 7,204
FREEEZRE 1,372
RIBRERNAEHE 127,841

AEEHEZHEE  EPESE
ERAEEEZEEEMEL
EEENHAEHEENRBER -
ZERENEREKAMBEZY -
AEFEEREERNRZERHE
BERAEHERKI B AA
R#122,476,000t M A R ¥
7,204,0007T °

HERSRHAERENMER
7 [ 728(c) °
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Bt 75 Rk B &

31 December 2019
—F+=ZAR=+—8”

INTANGIBLE ASSETS BREE
Licenses and Concession
franchises Trademarks _right Total
RERGTE z Ler Foh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETTL ARETTL ARETL AREFT
31 December 2019 “E-NE
t=ZRA=t+-H
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NF
—HA—H
Cost W x 4,210 4,515 5,000 13,725
Accumulated amortisation X 3 (3,199) (3,596) (3,250) (10,045)
Net carrying amount B FE 1,011 919 1,750 3,680
Cost at 1 January 2019, RZZ-NF
net of accumulated —A—RAZRA
amortisation Mk 25 & 1,011 919 1,750 3,680
Amortisation provided FRNBERE
during the year (330) (425) (500) (1,255)
Exchange realignment B 7, 38 & = 4 = 4
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—-NF
—A=1+—H 681 498 1,250 2,429
At 31 December 2019: R-ZE—NF
+-A=+—8
Cost AR 4,233 4,564 5,000 13,797
Accumulated amortisation REtEE (3,552) (4,066) (3,750) (11,368)
Net carrying amount EEFE 681 498 1,250 2,429
31 December 2018 —E-\E
tZA=+
At 1 January 2018 EA:T)%—/\E
—H—H
Cost KA 4,086 4,273 5,000 13,359
Accumulated amortisation REtE® (2,781) (2,987) (2,750) (8,518)
Net carrying amount EEFE 1,305 1,286 2,250 4,841
Cost at 1 January 2018, RZT-N\F
net of accumulated —A—AZHA
amortisation Mk 25 & 1,305 1,286 2,250 4,841
Amortisation provided FRNHEERE
during the year (319 (407) (500) (1,226)
Exchange realignment B 71, 38 % 25 40 - 65
At 31 December 2018 —E-N\F
+-A=+—-H 1,011 919 1,750 3,680
At 31 December 2018: R-B—-N\#F
T-A=t+—-0:
Cost N 4,210 4,515 5,000 13,725
Accumulated amortisation B (3,199) (3,596) (3,250) (10,045)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,011 919 1,750 3,680
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31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H
16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

172

EHEEFE
HELRAMER

Share of net assets
Loans to joint ventures

The loans to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. In the opinion of the directors, these
loans are unlikely to be repaid in the foreseeable future and
are considered as part of the Group’s net investments in the
joint ventures.

The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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o> & N8 o>
m%%+m

REGERT
2018
—2-—n5 LR
RMB’000 RMB’000
NI ARETR
10,505 1,652
2,849 4,037
13,354 5,589
BRANERARILR 2855
MR EERA  REERTAT
AT R M SR 1R+ AR 1R A o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures are as

follows:

Name

L

Tang & Rich Holdings (1)
Limited*
BRERIERAF"

Tang & Rich Holdings (1l)
Limited*
BEERIERA A

Shanghai Ben Tang
Catering Management
Limited*

TEBAEERERAR
NGIM

Shenzhen Bao Ma
Catering Management
Limited*

RIGEERERER

NGIM

Taiwan Tang Palace
Catering Management
Limited*

AR -
A=

FUNGIN
Social Place Singapore

Pte Limited*

Foodmazing Limited*

BXEEBROAN

*

BERERERA

Issued
share
capital

ERTRA

US$1,000
1,000% 7T

US$10
E

RMB1,000,000
AR®
1,000,0007

RMB1,000,000
AR®
1,000,0007C

TWD60,000,000

ek
60,000,0007C

SGD100,000
T
100,000

HK$300,000
300,000% 7T

Place of
incorporation
and business
MR LR
EENY

British Virgin
Islands

RBRAES

British Virgin
Islands

RERAES

PRC/Mainland
China
FE/RERL

PRC/Mainland
China
FE/RERAL

Taiwan

L ek
R /=

Singapore

a0

Hong Kong
e

firm of the Ernst & Young global network

Ownership
interest

RERER

56

60

49

30

45

40

33

Not audited by Emst & Young, Hong Kong or another member

The above investments are indirectly held by the Company.

ZAS S

Percentage of

Baok

Voting
power

RER

56

60

49

30

45

40

33

i

Bt 75 Rk B &

31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

TEABATZHEHRNT -

Profit
sharing  Principal activities
BROK TEXH

56  Restaurant operations

EREH

60  Restaurant operations

EBXH

49 Restaurant operations

EEXH

30  Restaurant operations

EEXH

45 Restaurant operations

EEXH

40  Restaurant operations

ERER
33 Restaurant operations
EEX%

HMABRBBLZKEALRKEHRBEZ
S HKBERREX

PR ERARAEETE °
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31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

The Group had discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of Tang & Rich Holdings (Il) Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively, “T&R (ll) Group”) because the share
of losses of T&R(Il) Group exceeded the Group’s interest in
T&R (Il) Group and the Group had no obligation to take up
further losses.

The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share of losses of
T&R (Il) Group for the current year and cumulatively were
RMB439,000 (2018: RMB99,000) and RMB1,402,000 (2018:
RMB963,000), respectively.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not
individually material:

AEECDRKRIEEREGEEEZERINEG
oA REWME LR (SEEIE &S
B AREEERNEESRBEEL
AEBRERNWEBE 2 EHE BXAKE
B IS A — SRR -

REBRAFERRG 2 REREMN
BER(INEEEBES R B AK439,000
T(ZF— N\ F: AR #99,0007T) &
AR®1,402,000t (ZZE—N\F : AR
#963,0007T) °

TRIBAEEBANBTIERZAE

Share of the joint ventures’ losses for
the year

Share of the joint ventures’ other
comprehensive (loss)/income

Share of the joint ventures’ total
comprehensive loss

Aggregate carrying amount of the
Group’s investments in the joint
ventures

NEIZ BB FEER
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
AR T T
FREMAEERREE
(3,817) (3,803)
EEEERmHEMmEE
(FB18) M= (9) 162
BG4 RAR2HEEBEAE
(3,826) (3,641)
REBREGERAIZEEY
BREEER
13,354 5,589



Notes to the Financial Statements

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/PROFIT OR LOSS

Bt R 3R R Y =

31 December 2019
RZE—-NF+_A=+—H

17. BRAVEFAHEMEZE KRS

BEREvemEE

2019 2018
== ¥ - 3 —E—N\HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B TR ARBFIT

Equity investments designated at fair EERAFEFAEMBRE

value through other comprehensive WaEzRAKRE

income

Listed equity investment, at fair value ZRATFEFEN ETmRAE

BE

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value & A FETEMHIE EHAR A

BE

9,304 23,209
13,842 15,000
23,146 38,209

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

In the prior year, the Group sold its equity interest in a
listed investment designated at fair value through profit or
loss as this investment no longer coincided with the Group’s
investment strategy. The gain on derecognition of
RMB3,992,000 was recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

E A AR E N R B R T AR A
FEFAEMEZERSEEX REZAR
SERBAUENEBREIEE -

REF AEEBHEETERAFERA
TABRZ EMBRARE  REAZ
RETHHEASENKRERBEYS -
BUH #E 52 W 2 A IR #53,992,0007T A 18

PIGE 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARET T

Debt investment designated at fair EERATETFTARBRZEZ

value through profit or loss BERE

Unlisted debt investment, at fair value BEAFHEFENIELEMER

"E

27,456 —

The above debt investment was a convertible loan and was
mandatorily classified as financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss as its contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest.

RS 1R 2 T 4R R 38 5
FREATEF ARSI SMEE

AEANRERLFE/RINEAE R
S o
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31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

18.

INVENTORIES

18.

Food and beverages, and other operating & i N #URHA KB 12 2 7% &

items for restaurant operations HihiL =18 B

FE
2019 2018
—E-AHF ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARBFIT
51,344 47,075

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

176

PREPAYMENTS

19.

EZRHEMBERFERAMNSK
1]

Trade receivables Z S EWHIE
Prepayments T8 BB

Deposits and other receivables

Less: Prepayments and deposits classified & : D E AR EE 2
BEARERES

as non-current assets

12 MO b R WK R

2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ET T
13,571 13,760
20,557 28,673
47,774 64,888
81,902 107,321
(35,090) (45,173)
46,812 62,148

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
is generally 30 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to

credit. The credit period

maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact

Overdue balances are reviewed
that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
its trade

other credit enhancements over receivable

balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (HREl) IR BIR

AEEBREEPZRXZHRREZERN
EE-EEH-—RA/VB -BHEP
BAERFE LR -AEEHHERKDE
WHRIBEERBRRES -SREEES
EHERMAMGR - N Ll AR
SEZESRUFRBRSZHDHER
BR - MUBEREESETER A&
BYEREE FRUPKRBERIT AL
MERRREMERERERAER - B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

Within 30 days 30H A

31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61£290H
Over 90 days 908 M £

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type,
customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade
receivables are written off if past due for more than one year
and are not subject to enforcement activity. As at 31
December 2019 and 2018, the Group assessed the loss
allowance and the expected credit loss rate under the
application of HKFRS 9 were insignificant.

Bt 75 Rk B &

31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

REZHMFE 2 HREKBERE
EHRZERESNNBREE BT

2018

—E-N\F

RMB’000

ARBET T

13,072 12,786
239 254

59 417

201 303
13,571 13,760

REBRESEHRABEBEEEETRE
o U ERBEEER - BEXTD
ERNAARUBEREANZEARZF S
MANMBHBEYMETE (AR ER
BH - BEPER KRR - Lt ERBR
IREMEER BEBEBEIRN®RSE
FHABNERBESHE EAMN
MARREEGHEANEGERASEER
o —RME - BHEKAERRE S
B—FRBAZBRNEHAITESA
TUME R_F-AFR=_F-N
Ft-A=+—B XAEBEFHER
BREV B REENFSR THEREE
LREHEEBERXLSMIRE -
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31 December 2019
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An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period that were not individually nor collectively
considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired R H R KR E
1 to 30 days past due #1 HA1 2308
31 to 60 days past due i1 #A31260H

Over 60 days past due # HI60R M £

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits and deposits with suppliers. Where applicable, an
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default of comparable
companies with published credit ratings. In the situation
where no comparable companies with credit ratings can be
identified, expected credit losses are estimated by applying
a loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss
record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. As at 31 December 2019 and
2018, the Group assessed the loss allowance and the
expected credit loss rate under the application of HKFRS 9
were insignificant.

A 3R & B R 4 M8 51 3K 2k [R) B2 AR 1 R
BENEZBYKAEREKDTOT

2018

—E-N\F

RMB’000

ARBET T

13,072 12,786
239 254

59 417

201 303
13,571 13,760

RehHEtpRKFEIZHHEHERS
FEHEBNEZES NEHRE DB
BERCAMEEFANA L AFE
KRR REMEEITRED T (HERA)
MEEZZNEABEEEFRANALR
Al -EHREEERABSEASER
EEBEBREERBETLETHE -
B 18 R 70 B R 1 B A R R
BB RIER R KB - =
E-NFR-_FE-NF+_A=1+—
B AREFEEAETEMBGHREE
AEOR THEBRBEGBREREERE
ERWIRE-
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Be RRITES
Time deposits 7E BRI F 3K

Cash and bank balances

Less: Pledged deposits (note 23)
Time deposits with original

maturity over 3 months EHER
Cash and cash equivalents ReEhkReF

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group held in Mainland China amounted to
RMB470,192,000 (2018: RMB461,714,000). The RMB held in
Mainland China is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Certain of the Group’s cash at banks earns interest at
floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term
time deposits are made for varying periods of between
seven days and twelve months (2018: seven days and
twelve months) depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.

B BT R (A ZE23)
REIBAEB=A

B 7% SRR B A

31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

2018
—E-)N\F

RMB’000

AR®T T

293,195 275,986
203,259 268,368
496,454 544,354
(80,000) (80,000)
(34,000) (64,000)
382,454 400,354

REWERR AEEBRFEAMIFEAR
CHERBRITHEBREEATREAR
#£470,192,0007C (ZZE— \F : AR
461,714,0007T) ° AR P E RN MIFE
ZARBITEEEBRAHEMER -
SR AR R B P A G0 FE B R MK 1A
MEEE  EERNEETERTE  A5H
BREFARERTEARBELAH
fEE - LAEITINEER -

AEBEETRTRESEENRRITEAR
TFRMERZFEE ERBREA S - 155
EHFERZHRBEAE+T @A (=
Z-NF:LtAETZHA)TE R
FAEBZAKREFTRME » Lk
HEZEHEMFEREXREAAME -
RITEBKRIEFENEERIFZRITE
B W R RIA AL o
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B R 3R AR Y =

31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. EZRHMEMNKIE
2019 2018
—E-NhEF —E-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARE T ARBET T
Trade payables B 5 A FRIE 68,908 73,210
Other payables and accruals H fth JE S SR IE R B AT
IE 27,231 29,695
Salary and welfare payables B K@ T 31,414 33,242
Contract liabilities ARAME (@) 177,795 153,779
305,348 289,926
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of REZERMFE  BEHERNRERR
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as MR ZERSTWT
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Within 30 days 30BN 60,383 59,478
31 to 60 days 31£260H 3,818 7,688
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,143 2,401
91 to 180 days 91£180H 1,838 2,047
Over 180 days 180H KA E 1,726 1,596
68,908 73,210

The trade and other payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on terms of 30 days to 90 days.

180 TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (HREl) IR BIR
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21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
Note:

(@) Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

R E Y
31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H
21. EZRHEHMEMNRE @)
oz

@ AHNBEFBFWT:

31 December 31 December 1 January

2019 2018 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F —E-N\F

=i == TZTA=+—8H —A—H

Short-term advances received — # % = 4 B 49 57 B7 A
from customers 117

Contract liabilities in relation to  HEFFERIBE
customers’ advance payments KA BB E

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETT AREBTT

177,795 153,779 124,723

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to
deliver goods. The increase in contract liabilities in 2019 and
2018 was mainly due to the increase in short-term advances
received from customers in relation to the restaurant
operations at the end of the year.

22. DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

The amounts due to related companies are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. In the opinion of
directors, the directors, shareholders and beneficial owners
of the related companies are the common directors and
major shareholders of the Company.

ERABREAXNEYmUKIND
BHENR T AFRZT-N
FANAEEN TETARFERL
BRI R SRR E TS B B AR
A FRIE G AN P EL

22. EBAM S KA
ENBEARZAAREER 28
YRRBREER - EERA  ZWER

AZEE BREREREEARER
AZHAREERETEZRRE -
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23.

182

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

23.

SFERTEER

2018
—E-N\%
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BB A= (%) H8A NEinen | ERFIE%) )= ARBFT
Current b
Bank loans — secured RITBH - BEA 2.20%-3.83% on demand 80,000  2.00%-3.59% on demand 79,200
EEX REX
2019 2018
—E-AHF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE Tt ARMF T
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans: MITE N
On demand B EK 80,000 79,200

The Group’s banking facilities amounting to
RMB80,000,000 (2018: RMB79,200,000), of which
RMB80,000,000 (2018: RMB79,200,000) had been
utilised as at the end of the reporting period, are
secured by the pledge of certain of the Group’s time
deposits amounting to RMB80,000,000 (2018:
RMB80,000,000) (note 20).

All borrowings are in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings in the
amount of RMB80,000,000 (2018: RMB79,200,000)
containing a repayment on demand clause have been
classified as current liabilities. For the purpose of the
above analysis, the loans are included within current
interest-bearing bank borrowings and analysed into
bank loans repayable on demand.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (HREl) IR BIR

AEBRITHREARE
80,000,000t (ZZE—\F : AR
#79,200,0007T) & F A R #
80,000,000t (ZZE—N\F : AR
#£79,200,0007C) R i E HA R B
WERH AASEEHRE T EH
£ 7 A R #:80,000,00007T (= &
— N\ : AR #¥80,000,0007T) {E
AR (M 5E20) -

FrEEBERBITHREA -

AEEMFERITERESEAA
R %80,000,0007T (= Z — )\ F :
AR#79,200,0007T) * BIEES
KERIEX  »EARBAE -
LRSI E - BERFTARD
FFRBRITER RS T AREENKIER
TER-
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31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

24. DEFERRED TAX 24, iEEFHIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during FR-EERBEEBEREENZE SN
the year are as follows: ™~
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEEE

Undistributed

profits of
Right-of-use the PRC
assets subsidiaries Total
REHE A A
EHEEE K2R R et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T AR T T AR T T
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF—A—H - 8,899 8,899
Deferred tax credited to the FARBRERERZ
statement of profit or loss during IEE R TE (M a2 10)
the year (note 10) - (2,119 (2,119
At 31 December 2018 RZZT—NF
+-A=+—H - 6,780 6,780
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RNE RIS LR
F165 T E 65,280 - 65,280
At 1 January 2019 (retated) RZZE—hh&—HA—H
(re&5) 65,280 6,780 72,060
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to the F AR B R (K%),/
statement of profit or loss during Bk 2 IR E T IE
the year (note 10) (K1 :%10) (20,992) 115 (20,877)
At 31 December 2019 RZT—hF
+-A=+—8 44,288 6,895 51,183
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Bt s AR MY &

31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

24,

184

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

24, EERIE (&)

Deferred tax assets BEBIEEE
Losses
available for
offsetting
against future Other
Lease taxable temporary
liabilities profits differences Total
FEATESH
AERERB
HEEE SEANESE HOEZWEER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT ARETRTI ARETR
At 1 January 2018 R_ZE—-N\F
—H—H - 172 5,813 5,985
Deferred tax charged to the & AR B KX 1K
statement of profit or loss ~ Z IE L& 1B
during the year (note 10)  (#1:£10) — (172) (1,405) (1,577)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+ZA=+—8H - - 4,408 4,408
Effect of adoption of KBS BRE
HKFRS 16 HRIEB16R M E 78,095 - - 78,095
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE—-NF
(restated) —A—B#EEN) 78,095 - 4,408 82,503
Deferred tax charged to the & AR B X 1%
statement of profit or loss 2 iE AL & 1B
during the year (note 10)  (#1:£10) (22,232) — (761) (22,993)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+-A=+—8 55,863 - 3,647 59,510

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (HREl) IR BIR
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For presentation purpose, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
RMB6,360,000 (2018: RMB6,360,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against the future taxable profits of
the company in which the losses arose. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses in
Hong Kong of approximately RMB6,360,000 (2018:
RMB6,360,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

Bt 75 Rk B &

31 December 2019
—h&E+=ZA=+—H

REBRMS FTEEHRBEEEREA
BEERMBARAKRIEE - AEEIER
BREREZBERREHRONOT

R B ISR R T w2

EEFIBEEFR 15,222

RERE B ISR R 1# R

EEHIBEEFRE (6,895)
8,327

AEBREEELENEEBARE
6,360,000/L(Z T — N F: AR K
6,360,0007T) * AJfE[R A {E S5 AR
AIHBCERB &R (BB HILE
) o BRNESETER R EFR - I
AFERBENBEEESREBEOARK
6,360,000 (= & — N F: AR ®
6,360,0007T) T R IR E i TH & B o
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The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB8,293,000 (2018: RMB14,743,000) that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the companies in which the losses arose. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses of
approximately RMB8,293,000 in Mainland China (2018:
RMB14,743,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is
5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes when dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of
temporary difference associated with undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries was approximately RMB347,533,000 (2018:
RMB338,304,000). A deferred tax liability has been
recognised in respect of approximately RMB137,900,000
(2018: RMB135,600,000) of such undistributed earnings. No
deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect of the
undistributed earnings of certain subsidiaries of
RMB209,633,000 (2018: RMB202,704,000) because the
Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that such
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

AREBRPEAMEEZHER —2F
F N EH 2 B 18 & 1 A R %8,293,000
T(ZE—)\F : AR®14,743,0007T)
ARARBEELAZSEBEZCSR AL
R E R m A o F R B A TE ORI R 3R
e F R B SR BE R A B A /Y B IR
B 18 4 A R #8,293,000t (Z & — N
& NR#14,743,0007T) B R IR IE B
HEE -

BEFBEPEMSHE FBERHK
U ZANEBRECERIINEEEETIR
2B IBEN10% 2T - :ZE T B
—EENEFE—A—BREK LEA
R-EBETZ+F+_A=+—HZHBE
EZBR - EZRBANMAMINRIEEE
ZEERER B EN T BIRT B
RKAREBEZENMRBEE - AEE M
S B A E B%H10%  F It K
EEAEHERE RN 2 HE QT
M_EENF—A—BRELEZEF
FinpRzRBIETBINFL B -

RFERR WBRAR RS RAFE
B EREZEBENAEARE
347,533,000t (ZE — NF: AR
338,304,0007T) °c B % 9 A R ¥
137,900,000 (=& — N\ F: AR
135,600,0007T) 7 #% 5 K 7 B & 7 i
RELCHREBEEE AEEVTENREH
ETHBAARD RAFARE
209,633,000 c (=T — N\ F: AR
202,704,00070) ERIELERIBEEE - )
AR ANEEENTFREOZERER
ZEB RZEEREEAUELBERT
gL AT -

AR R B A BRER 32 A BRCS 3 4 A AR AE )
FR1SH



25. ISSUED CAPITAL

Authorised:
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each

Issued and fully paid:
1,073,862,500
(2018: 1,068,617,500)
ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each

ETE

4,000,000,0008%
BREEC.05
BT Bk

BETRHR:

1,073,862,500%
(ZE—N\HF:
1,068,617,500
&) &R EE
0.05% L2
EiE ik

Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

25. B EITRA

As at 31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2018
R-ZB-N& RZZE—N\&F
+t=A=+—-H +ZA=+—~H

RMB’000 RMB’000

equivalent equivalent

HK$’000 £\ HK$'000 =&
TERL AR®BTR TET AR®TT

200,000 200,000
53,693 45,726 53,431 45,496
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25. ISSUED CAPITAL (continued) 25. BERITRA®)

AEFZRGHBBEL2EARARFZE
BITEBRBRAEE  FEOT

A summary of the transactions during the year with
reference to the movements in the Company’s issued

188

ordinary share capital is as follows:

Number of
shares in
issue Issued capital
BET
RAEE ERTRA
(equivalent to)
ZE
Notes HK$’000 RMB’000
k3 FEL ARETR
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2018 R-Z—N\F—F—H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Effect of share subdivision B HFHEE (@ 2,000,000,000 -
At 31 December 2018, RZE-NF+ZA=+—8"
1 January 2019 and ZZ-NF-A-Bk
31 December 2019 “E-NF+-A=+—H 4,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 January 2018 — before  RZ-_ZE—-NF—F—H — &)
Share Subdivision kit 531,686,250 53,169 45,276
Issue of shares under share R 2B 8 B 1T R (5
award plan — before Share — B D IFRAE
Subdivision () 1,082,500 108 91
Immediately before the Share B 1) 5 Al
Subdivision 532,768,750 53,277 45,367
Effect of Share Subdivision BhoFew® (@) 532,768,750 - -
Immediately after the Share ZRERMDHIFE
Subdivision 1,065,537,500 53,277 45,367
Issue of shares under share RIER D 2B 81 BT R D — IR
award plan — after Share nnFik
Subdivision (c) 3,080,000 154 129
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\F+ZA=+—HK
1 January 2019 “E-hE—-—A—H 1,068,617,500 53,431 45,496
Issue of shares under share BB RO =B R E B TR (D
award plan () 2,165,000 108 95
Issue of shares under share RERMD RE B BETRG
award plan (e) 3,080,000 154 135
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NFE+-_A=+—H 1,073,862,500 53,693 45,726

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED &' (HREl) IR BIR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

The nominal value of the ordinary shares of the Company was
initially at HK$0.1 per share. With effect from 5 June 2018,
each of the then existing issued and unissued share of the
Company was subdivided into two subdivided shares of
HK$0.05 each, after a resolution had been passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 4
June 2018 and with an approval obtained from the Stock
Exchange (the “Share Subdivision”). Upon the Share
Subdivision became effective, the authorised share capital of
the Company had become HK$200,000,000, divided into
4,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each. The other rights and
terms of the shares remained unchanged as at 31 December
2018.

On 16 April 2018, 1,082,500 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
of the Company were issued to certain employees pursuant
to a share award plan. The shares were deemed to be
issued at HK$3.66 each, being the market price at the date
the shares were awarded. The total deemed consideration for
the issue of shares was HK$3,962,000 (equivalent to
RMB3,328,000), of which HK$108,000 (equivalent to
RMB91,000) representing the par value of the shares of the
Company, was credited to the Company’s share capital and
the remaining deemed consideration of HK$3,854,000
(equivalent to RMB3,237,000) before issue expenses was
credited to the share premium account.

Wit

Bt 75 Rk B &

31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

ARREBEREERAE RS
TLe RRAIR-ZE—\FRNAMBE
THRRFINARE ERBARZERYL
BB ER BT —N\FX
REBR AAFAREMNERE BT
MARBITROMHEIFAEMBETRE
E0.05% 7T &) #F 4 & 0 ([ 18 19
1) o B DIFRERE - ARABBE
TE B AN & 5200,000,0008 7T 0 5 A
4,000,000,0008% & % [ {60.05/7% 7T H)
fEm-RZFE—NF+=A=+—
B ROEEAMENRGEREST

#eh

-

RZZ—NFmA+B  ARFIR
BERGOEBMSFEME TIEE®ET
1,082,5008% & i E E0. 178 L 2 & i@
B o BRI H W AR BIR T IR3.667E T
BT BNEERMDE BNTE - 5Lk
19817 2 WA (B 48 % /33,962,000
ot (B E RN A R #3,328,0007T) -
& 108,000 7L (H & W A R ¥
91,0007T) B A AR HEE - B &t
ARDABRA B THRENRE
3,854,000 L(MH & N A R %
3,237,0007T) (RN EBEITHZ) T A

a8 (B B e
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Notes: (Continued)

()

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
on the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
4 June 2018, on 7 June 2018, 3,080,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.05 each of the Company (after the Share Subdivision
became effective) were issued to Ms. Weng Peihe, being an
executive director and the chief executive officer of the
Company who has abstained from the voting in the related
resolution, pursuant to a share award plan. The shares were
deemed to be issued at HK$1.85 each, being the market
price at the date the shares were awarded. The total deemed
consideration for the issue of shares was HK$5,698,000
(equivalent to RMB4,786,000), of which HK$154,000
(equivalent to RMB129,000) representing the par value of the
shares of the Company, was credited to the Company’s
share capital and the remaining deemed consideration of
HK$5,544,000 (equivalent to RMB4,657,000) before issue
expenses was credited to share premium account.

On 25 April 2019, 2,165,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
of the Company were issued to certain employees pursuant
to a share award plan. The shares were deemed to be
issued at HK$1.39 each, being the market price at the date
the shares were awarded. The total deemed consideration for
the issue of shares was HK$3,009,000 (equivalent to
RMB2,648,000), of which HK$108,000 (equivalent to
RMB95,000) representing the par value of the shares of the
Company, was credited to the Company’s share capital and
the remaining deemed consideration of HK$2,901,000
(equivalent to RMB2,553,000) before issue expenses was
credited to share premium account.

Wit - (&)

()

BEBRER=ZZ—-—NFAMNASR
TZARBIBREFINARAG LBRBZ
TErAFR E_ZT—NEXAL
A ARRREBRD EE T & RS 5E
R+t (BERRRZHATEERT
B CTEBBEAZR ENER
=) % 173,080,0000% & f% M H0.05/8
TZERER(RBRODFERZE) -
B RAKRD R BIEST R85 T
17 BIEEEIAR (D B BETE - IR G
17 2 RAER B 48 58 A5,698,0007%
7C (1 & W A R #4,786,0000T) © &
F154,000% 7 (H & N A B %
129,0007T) AR QRGO EE - E5
ARDAEBRA % TRAERE
5,544,000% L(#H & N A R &
4,657,0007T) (R FOBR B 1TH =) & A
A& 17 Vi 18 B o

RZEBE—-AFMONA-+HHB  ARQF
BER D&M E T&EE#1T
2,165,000f% & A% | {80.05/8 7T 2 &
A% o BRERMD R AL TR1.39%
TLET AREROEBNTE- 3
BhBEETZEERERE A
3,000,000% T(#H & N A R &
2,648,0007T) * & #1108,000/% T (#H
W AR #95,0007T) & A A R &K
HE Dt ARRARBRA - 2 TEME
X 82,901,000 T (H & KX AR
2,553,0007T) (R BR B 17 ) 5 A
A& 17 i 18 Bk o
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Notes: (Continued)

()

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
on the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
14 June 2019, on 19 June 2019, 3,080,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each of the Company were issued to Ms. Weng
Peihe, being an executive director and the chief executive
officer of the Company who has abstained from the voting in
the related resolution, pursuant to a share award plan. The
shares were deemed to be issued at HK$1.26 each, being
the market price at the date the shares were awarded. The
total deemed consideration for the issue of shares was
HK$3,881,000 (equivalent to RMB3,415,000), of which
HK$154,000 (equivalent to RMB135,000) representing the par
value of the shares of the Company, was credited to the
Company’s share capital and the remaining deemed
consideration of HK$3,727,000 (equivalent to RMB3,280,000)
before issue expenses was credited to share premium
account.

Details of the Company’s share award plan are included in

note 27 to the financial statements.

Bt 75 Rk B &

31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

Wit - (&)

(€)

BERER-_Z—HAFENA+TA
BIZARAREEN ARG AR
ZEBRBR E_T—NENA
+HhB - ARRRERG EETE
[EARL LT (BABRRRZHATES
ROTBBH WEBBRERRLEWE
&% =) %% 773,080,000/ & % l {60.05
Bz LB - BEARMERABIZS
B1.2678 T IT > BNERR N E BH
T RMDBETZRERELER
3,881,000 ;L(H & W A R 8
3,415,0007T) * & 154,000/ T (4
BN AR135,00070) AR R A D
HEE Bt ARRARIRA - 2 T1R1E
£ (83,727,000 7t (18 & W A R &
3,280,0007T) (KRB EE1TH ) 5 A
B& 17 % B IR o

NI e i
M 527 -

191



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% 3 3R B &

31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

192

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 91
and 92 of the financial statements.

The statutory general reserve represents the appropriation
of 10% of profit after taxation determined based on the
relevant accounting rules and regulations of the PRC as
required by the Articles of Association of the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries. The appropriation may cease to apply if
the balance of the statutory general reserve has reached
50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered capital.

The other reserve includes: (a) the difference between the
nominal value of the share capital issued by Tang Palace
F&B Enterprise Limited (“Tang Palace BVI”) and the nominal
value of share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by Tang
Palace BVI, (b) the deemed contribution from a controlling
shareholder of RMB1,866,000 arising on the acquisition of
the remaining 10% equity interest in Meco Petrochemical
Limited from Mr. Hui Yui Chuen (“Mr. Hui”), a non-
controlling shareholder, by Mr. Chan, a founder shareholder
of the Company, on 23 December 2009 and representing
the unaudited combined net asset value of Meco
Petrochemical Limited attributable to Mr. Hui as at 30
November 2009 reclassified from non-controlling interests as
deemed contribution by Mr. Chan, (c) the difference
between the subscription price and the nominal value of the
shares allotted and issued by Tang Place BVI of
RMB35,014,000 and the deemed contribution from
controlling shareholders of RMB107,215,000 and (d) the
difference between the nominal value of 1,999,999 shares of
HK$0.1 each in the Company’s issued share capital and the
entire issued share capital of Tang Palace BVI of US$50,000
eliminated as a result of the Group Reorganisation.

REBRAFERBEFEZHES
ERERNEEE RN IFHREKFEN
NOBE VIR EEEEHRNA -

AREIFEKEARMEZERZMA
ME - BAREBEMEBRESE AL RE
RE T A5 B &8 FI10% B AL TE —
MEB - WEET —REBHRBEFRH
M8 A FFE B A R50% - B Al 4% 1
B -

Hi#EEEQESRREEBR AR
([ Tang Palace BVI]) E# 1Tl AHE A
By Tang Palace BVIU BE BT & A &) f%
AEBEZHEMNZEEE  OBRARQFE
WAREREENR _—_ZTNEFE+ A
TtH=AR—BFERBRETRREL
E((HFEEDRBESABRILIBR
™ ) T BR10% A% 4 T EE AE Y R B iE R
&%ﬁ% & A R #1,866,0007T © B
RZZEENF+—A=+HITRERE
EERABEIAERRAAREERZE
HEEFE BHIFEERBEZENHE
{EPRR L ERRIED JL’E&( c) Tang Palace
BVIELZ R ETHRHRBBEEBEZ
R Z 5 AR 35,014,000 WA & B 12
BBREELDHRED RARME
107,215,0007T * R ()& A & B 17
AN IR E (0178 7T #£1,999,9900% ik
7 E B £ R Tang Palace BVIEI & 3 E
B 47 A 5 B = 48 M8 /9 I% AX50,0003
THEEZRENESE-
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The Company adopted a share award plan on 25 March
2011 which was revised on 22 March 2013 (“Share Award
Plan”) pursuant to which the board of directors may, subject
to and in accordance with the rules of the Share Award
Plan, make an award of shares to certain classes of eligible
participants as specified in the Share Award Plan, as
determined by the board of directors from time to time on
the basis of the opinion of the board of directors as to the
proposed awardee’s contribution and/or future contribution
to the development and growth of the Group. The shares
and other trust fund for the implementation of the Share
Award Plan are administered by a trustee or trustees (the
“Share Award Plan Trustee”) to be appointed by the
Company.

Under the Share Award Plan, the board of directors shall
determine the eligibility of the eligible participants and the
number of shares to be awarded (the “Awarded Shares”)
and notify the Share Award Plan Trustee of the making of
awards. The Awarded Shares are either (1) transferred from
any person (other than the Group) by way of gift; (2)
purchased by the Share Award Plan Trustee out of the
funds received by way of gift or for nominal consideration;
(8) subscribed for or purchased by the Share Award Plan
Trustee out of the funds allocated by the board of directors
out of the Group’s resources, subject to the terms and
conditions of the rules of the Share Award Plan. The Share
Award Plan Trustee may purchase shares on the Stock
Exchange at the prevailing market price or off market, or
subscribe for new shares at par or at such other
subscription price as instructed by the board of directors
out of the Group’s contribution if the board of directors
considers it appropriate to do so.

B 7% SRR B A

31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

ARAR—_F——F=ZA-t+ABXR
“E-ZFZA-T-ARED RS
B fn B2 By =t 8 (TR 0 BB EH 81 )) - 1%
HEEE AR ET RRE R R
SR ANBERT A ERE )
AWMETHEIAERZ2EERB K
h EREHEFSIHEREESS
MEBRXRBATHAEEER M IE
RIFEEMBER R EERERBE TH
BRETE -BETHRMERE MR
Mk kEMETRES  AXRAH
TREN—RBHAZBXFEA (KDL
Bt XA ER-

RER D EZRBE EFSFHER
B AETAER2EENERRIF
BB ODEE ((REERK]) I
ey ZEFEIZFEA - BEIERMD
BAOEMAL(REEERIN ABERTT
REETROBBFIZTEANK
QBB EZEABRERD
BEFEIZEAUNBER TSI AEE
REESNESHBENKD  QH
B RBFEZEADARESTEN
AEENERTHEBNES  RE
P A7 22 B =1 B 55 B &9 {6 3R B A 1 T AR
BRBERRD - KD EBEXE
AARBRFARRITHEXSINEE
Bfn HRHEREETGHE AR
RBEERABHNBD  RBELKA
AEEOEF HEFEER/RA
WEBEE 228 -

193



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% 3 3R B &

31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

194

On 16 April 2018, 1,082,500 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each were awarded to certain employees under the Share
Award Plan at HK$3.66 each, being the market price at the
date the shares were awarded. The total deemed
consideration of HK$3,962,000 (equivalent to
RMB3,328,000) was recognised as an expense during the
year in relation to the shares awarded under the Share
Award Plan as further detailed in note 25(b) to the financial
statements.

On 7 June 2018, 3,080,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each were awarded to Ms. Weng Peihe, an Executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
under the Share Award Plan at HK$1.85 each, being the
market price at the date the shares were awarded. The total
deemed consideration of HK$5,698,000 (equivalent to
RMB4,786,000) was recognised as an expense during the
year in relation to the shares awarded under the Share
Award Plan as further detailed in note 25(c) to the financial
statements.

On 25 April 2019, 2,165,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each of the Company were awarded to certain employees
under Share Award Plan at HK$1.39 each, being the market
price at the date the shares were awarded. The total
deemed consideration of HK$3,009,000 (equivalent to
RMB2,648,000) was recognised as an expenses during the
year in relation to the shares awarded under the Share
Award Plan as further detailed in note 25(d) to the financial
statements.

On 19 June 2019, 3,080,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each were awarded to Ms. Weng Peihe, an Executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
under the Share Award Plan at HK$1.26 each, being the
market price at the date the shares were awarded. The total
deemed consideration of HK$3,881,000 (equivalent to
RMB3,415,000) was recognised as an expenses during the
year in relation to the shares awarded under the Share
Award Plan as further detailed in note 25(e) to the financial
statements.

RZZE—NFHEA+H kK18
JT B91,082,5000% & 38 fx 1R 35 iz 10 22 B
FEIAER366ETRETFTAETET
B EEEOE ANME- - RIER
B 4858 53,962,000 7T (FHE RN AR
3,328,0007T) 5t B% 15 22 Bh =1 &I 7 3%
MRHRFAERAER S FHEIR
B 7% % 5= BT 5E25(0) ©

R-ZE—N\FRA+H ZKMEEO0.05
7 7T #93,080,000% &y I 18 A% 1R 5 A% 1
BRI EIAFIR1.858 TR T AR T
WITESERITREESERZL B
RHEBROEBHME - SIERE
42 %85,698,00078 ;L (M & W A R
4,786,0007T) it B% 17 242 ) 5+ 81 A7 5
ZHRORFRERAAS  FBEHR
B 7% ¥ = ¥ 5225(c) ©

R-ZZE—AFEMWA-+HAB  AQA
& I0.0578 JT #92,165,0000% & & I 1R
E AR (0 2B 5t 81 LA B RR1.8978 T iR
FTETEI BAEREEBHRGNE B D
m1{E - 18 {E X B 4 58 23,009,000/ 7T
(HE RN AR¥2648,0007T) X E A BL
I 1 S E A& AT H W AR 1) #E SR A
¥ FEBEN R R MY 5E25(d) ©

RZZE—-NAFAAA+NLE EREE
0.057 7T #93,080,0000% By & 8 I AR 1%
fE 7 B8 A B IR1.268 T I% T A
RATESTRITHRBHSERL
T BRI RER O E ARTE - RI1E
R (E42%83,881,00008 7T (HHE R AR
3,415,00070) 1A FF A 5t A% 15 22 B 71 &)
FEE2BROEREAS  FBERN
B 7% ¥ 3= Y 5225(e) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

On 25 April 2019 and 19 June 2019, 2,165,000
and 3,800,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 and
HK$0.05 each of the Company, respectively,
were issued under the Share Award Plan to the
employees and a director with no consideration
received.

On 16 April 2018 and 7 June 2018, 1,082,500
and 3,080,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 and
HK$0.05 each of the Company, respectively,
were issued under the Share Award Plan to the
employees and a director with no consideration
received.

During the vyear, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of RMB93,901,000 and
RMB93,901,000, respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for buildings (2018: Nil).

JIA

(i

(i)

Bt 75 Rk B &

31 December 2019

—“E-hF+ZA=+—H

R=ZZT—AFWMA =+
AREERZFT—-NFRA
+AMB8 2,165,000 &
3,800,000 EE 5 Bl &
0.058 LW AR R Al E iz iR
B EBMAEMES R
—REEFEIT - WELEMK
{go

RZF-NFOEA+HAE
RZF-NFEXALH"
1,082,5000% }23,080,000/%
[ {8 7 5l 720.178 7T }0.05
B ITTH) AR A R B RAR IR
e fn S By st Sl A 18 & & —
BEFHT UEKDMKA
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K #93,901,0007T & A R #
93,901,000 (= & — N
Fm) o

195



Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 75 3 3% B &

31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

28. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 28. e HEeREXRH T &)
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RMMEEHELANBRBEH
activities
2019 —E-NF

Bank loans Lease liabilities

RITEXK HE&E

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET R

At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+=-A=+—H 79,200 -
Effect of adoption of BN S B 7 R 5 2 R
HKFRS 16 EREA: A - 314,739

At 1 January 2019 (restated) HW—-_ZT—AF—HA—H

(&e=51) 79,200 314,739
Changes from financing BER SR
cash flows 800 (98,640)
New leases MEE — 93,901
Foreign exchange movement & & & = 432
Interest expense BB X - 25,556
Interest paid classified as DERKERESMEN
operating cash flows B F B = (25,556)
At 31 December 2019 RZTE—NF
+-A=+—H 80,000 310,432
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28. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 28. e HEeREXRH T &)
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) REFTHELENEEESH &)
activities (Continued)

2018 —ZE-N\F
Bank loans
RITE X
RMB’000
ARBEFTT
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H 70,550
Changes from financing cash flow BEREREE 8,650
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+_A=+—H 79,200
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERERHEEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the ReEmERNMNEERESRLE
statement of cash flows is as follows: EER (I

2019
—E-hF

RMB’000
AR®ET R

Within operating activities EETEHN 32,760
Within financing activities BEEHN 98,640

131,400
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29. COMMITMENTS 29. &
(a)  The Group had the following capital commitments at (a) ANEBERMEHARE AT ERK
the end of the reporting period: &

2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET R ARBTT

Contracted, but not provided for: EEIEKEE S
property, plant and equipment Y- WE RE&E 3,047 11,058

(b) Operating lease commitments as at 31 by R=-F—NE+=ZA=+—

December 2018 BRMESHERE

The Group leased certain of its restaurants and office AEBERCEHELTHEHES

premises under operating lease arrangements. Leases TEBEMRAERE -LEHE

for restaurants were negotiated for terms ranging from FHRZEEANTMEZTE W

two to ten years while lease for office premises was WABREHNEFHETAM

negotiated for terms of two years. F o
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29. COMMITMENTS (continued) 29. AIE®E)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Operating lease commitments as at 31 (b)
December 2018 (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

Bt 75 Rk B &

31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

R-F—-N\E+=-H =+—
BMESHERE 4

R-F-N\F+_A=1+—8"
AEBEB T AT HH L L HEZIA
THHARAKENNRERES
BEHIMT

2018
—E-NF
RMB’000
AR¥ET T

Within one year —E A
In the second to fifth years, inclusive —EEERF(H
After five years £¢1§

105,565
EERME) 244 551
45,756

395,872

The operating lease rentals of certain restaurants are
based solely on the sales of those restaurants or on
the higher of a fixed rental and contingent rent based
on the sales of those restaurants. In the opinion of the
directors, as the future sales of those restaurants
could not be accurately estimated, the relevant rental
commitments have not been included above.

&%BAD%%E?%E%Z‘X%%E
TZRRE-BEFRL ERZ

FRENRRHERBE LGRS
B MEBAAEARELABRER
Ex-
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200

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in

these financial statements, the Group had the following

material transactions with related parties during the

year:

Purchase of leasehold

Rental payments to

Rental payments to

BEHEMEEE

improvements and By

equipment

ST R E
RAElZHERNK

ST R E

a related company

a related company rElZBENK
Rental payments to YT RS
a related party ZHERK
Disposal of partial equity HE—XWBEAQF
interest in a subsidiary to a  Z #8 {0 I #E T —
related party 2kl

Notes:

The selling price of the leasehold improvements and
equipment was made at pre-determined prices agreed
between the Group and Chiu Kwun Engineering
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Chiu Kwun”). Mr. Ku, a director
of the Company, is the beneficial owner of Chiu Kwun.

The rental payments were charged by Dongguan Well
Excellent Hotel Management Services Co., Ltd.
(“Dongguan Well Excellent”) at rates agreed between
the Group and Dongguan Well Excellent. Mr. Yip, Mr.
Chan and Mr. Ku, directors and shareholders of the
Company, are also the directors and shareholders of

Dongguan Well Excellent.

Notes

B et

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

FEAERRE - BR bt B 75 5

H 7B

==
B =<
PRI 5N - Ak B R
ETTFHERRS :
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARBT T
- 18
956 1,032
4,908 4,623
2,520 2,476
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iif) The rental payments were charged by Meco Group
Company Limited (“Meco Group”) at rates agreed
between the Group and Meco Group. Mr. Yip, Mr.
Chan and Mr. Ku, directors and shareholders of the
Company, are also the directors and shareholders of
Meco Group.

(iv)  The rental payments were charged by Mr. Yip and Mr.
Yip Ka Fai (the “Related Landlord”) at rates agreed
between the Group and the Related Landlord. Mr. Yip
is a director and shareholder of the Company, and Mr.
Yip Ka Fai is the son of Mr. Yip and thus both of them
are related persons of the Company.

(v) In the prior year, the Group disposed of its partial equity
interest in a subsidiary to Mr. Yip Ka Fai for an
aggregate consideration of RMB1,300,000 in cash.
After the disposal, the Group continued to have control
over the subsidiary.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with joint
ventures and related companies as at the end of the
reporting period are included in note 16 and 22 to the
financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:
Details of directors’ and the chief executive’'s
emoluments and the five highest paid employees are
included in notes 8 and 9, respectively.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (i) and

(iv)

above also constitute connected transactions or

continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Bt 75 Rk B &

31 December 2019
—h&E+=ZA=+—H
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ENEASERESEERE
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31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 31.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

Financial assets

2019
ZE-NE
Financial Financial
assets at fair asset at
Financial value through fair value

assets at other through

amortised comprehensive profit or

cost income loss

RBH BRATEFTA BRAYHE
RASIE Et2ERE iTARR
WEREE MNEREE MNEREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARMTR AR%Tn

Financial assets at fair value RATEA
through other comprehensive  Efti 2 AU

RERNESS 2EWMITA

RREPRER SEEINERTEDN
BREENT

EMEAE

2018

—E2-N\%

Financial

assets at fair

Financial  value through

assets at other

amortised comprehensive
cost income Total

REE BATEAA

RAGIE EhEmkaE
h MeREE KemEE Fohy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
s ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR

income MepEE - 23,146 = 23,146 - 38,209 38,209
Financial asset at fair value BATEGABRE

through profit or loss SREE = - 27,456 27,456 - - -
Trade receivables EHRITE

(note 19) (Hi#19) 13,571 = = 13,571 13,760 - 13,760
Deposits and other receivables & R E BN

(note 19) RE W #19) 47,774 - - 47,774 64,888 - 64,888
Due from joint ventures EHAEDTF 3733 - - 3,733 2,696 - 2,696
Pledged time deposits EEATHER 80,000 - - 80,000 80,000 - 80,000
Time deposits THER 34,000 - - 34,000 64,000 - 64,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBe5E 382,454 - - 382,454 400,354 - 400,354

561,532 23,146 27,456 612,134 625,698 38,209 663,907
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31.

32.

Notes to the Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

31.

BB 3R AR M B

31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

EMAafR

REHNE S 2EM I A

Trade payables (note 21)
Other payables and accruals (note 21)

Due to related companies JESREE R A
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITEE
Lease liabilities HEAE

B 5 R (HiE21)
T A RE T FRE & H b A
REZ A EHF21)

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost

BRBERAIIRCERAE
2019 2018
—F-NF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBETT
68,908 73,210
27,231 29,695
404 353
80,000 79,200
310,432 —
486,975 182,458

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, time deposits, pledged time deposits,
trade receivables, trade payables, interest-bearing bank
borrowings, deposits and other receivables, other payables
and accruals and balances with related companies and joint
ventures approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

32.

ERMITENAFERQFEE
R

ERECE  BRekReFE B
TR CEAEBMER B HREK
HESEMNE GERTEE &
T N H e W FROR - B Al R R &
EETRIBARERERTREERA
WS ATE BEEmMEMET
TERHNZFILANERREE -

CRMEERBBENAFENRIARN
RENHEREFAZHETRSZ
TR MIERANFREE Z AT
B At A FEFERATITEARR

0.
B
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204

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices. The fair value of unlisted equity
investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income has been estimated using a valuation
technique based on assumptions that are not supported by
observable inputs. The valuation requires management to
calculate an appropriate price multiple.

The fair value of financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss has been estimated based on market prices of recent
transactions of the investments. The directors believe that
the estimated fair value resulting from the recent market
prices, which is recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position, and the related changes in fair values,
which are recorded in profit or loss, is reasonable, and that
it was the most appropriate value at the end of the
reporting period.

EHAHHERAEREZAFETR
MHMEAE - AR T EFT AEAME
BWEH I EHRARENAFETD
ERRBLEANEEHABBEIFDN
BENGHEERMEE -HEERERE
B EEREREH-

BAFEFABRENEREEZRF
BINRBIOIBZRER SO TIHER
HE -EEZRR GEMBRRARPE
SRHI TS ERE SN G RF
ErRGABERRTRENAFEEZD
REE MERBRERRZREENE
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31 December 2019
R-ZE—NAF+=-A=+—H

32. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 2. TRMTENAFERAFEERE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) &

Fair value hierarchy AFEEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRINTAEEERIA 2 AV ER
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: EER:

Assets measured at fair value: BRAFEABZEE:

As at 31 December 2019 R=ZB-AF+=ZA=+—8H

Fair value measurement using
DTEFEFRAUATEE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

REBTS2 BEATEZERA EATTHER
BE(E-R) HE(E=R) ABEB(E=ZR) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Financial assets at far & A FE A

value through other H 2 EK

comprehensive NEREE

income 9,304 = 13,842 23,146
Financial asset at far ~ EAFE AE

value through profit or ~ #HH & BLE E

loss = = 27,456 27,456
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31 December 2019
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TRITANATVFERATFEE
)

AFERBRE)
RZF-—NF+-_A=+—H

32. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 32.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018

Fair value measurement using

AFHGERAUT L8

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
NEFERA
AT EERE R BEXRAEE EBATAHER
M52 BE WA BR WA BR
(F—&) (F=®) (F=R) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBFT
Financial assets at far & A FE A
value through other H 2 m s
comprehensive NeREE
income 23,209 — 15,000 38,209

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3

during the year are as follows:

FAZ=MAFESFEZHOT

2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARMF T
Equity investments at fair value through & A F{Ez A Efb4r & Uk 2
other comprehensive income — HIR A E — I £ -
unlisted:
At 1 January Kn—H—H 15,000 —
Addition 1% = 15,000
Total losses recognised in other FFAEMEE =S EE
comprehensive income (1,158) —
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 13,842 15,000
Debt investment at fair value through BZRAVFEGFABRHER
profit or loss — unlisted: wE—FE LT
At 1 January Hn—HA—H - —
Addition 18 27,456 -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 27,456 —
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Liabilities measured at fair value:

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities (2018: Nil).

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and bank balances, short-term deposits and interest-bearing
bank borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
balances with related companies, trade payables and other
payables, which arise directly from the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
directors meet periodically to analyse and formulate
measures to manage each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Bt 75 Rk B &

31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

N

BAFEFEZAE:
RZE-NFR_ET—-NE+_A
—t—H AEBTETAEAFE
rEZemAaE-

FR AFEFERF-REBFE R
ZHHEBRUNEREENSREA
BYEE="QREAXBL (TN
FE) -

ARBEIELMIABRERE LR
BEr - RHIER R RRITRE - %%
CTRTACEZENRAAEEER
EREES -AKBNTAZHEERNE
BEEZHEBEREENAE  HimM
B 5 RWHRIE  BE KE M E WK
R EEBRRNGR  BHRNKA
R Bl A SRR o

AEBEMTAZEIERRRINER
w - EERRERBECRER EFE
HFEEUIMAS EEEAEERE
R - BRAERSRDT -
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The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies. It is
the Group’s policy not to enter into forward contracts until a
firm commitment is in place.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
Hong Kong dollar exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities)
and the Group’s equity.

2019 —EB-hEF

If Renminbi weakens against M AR EETRE
HK$

If Renminbi strengthens against  fitf A R 8 3,38 T FH{E

HK$

2018 —T-)N\F
If Renminbi weakens against i AR H B TR E
HK$

If Renminbi strengthens against fif A R ¥ 78 s 7+ &

REHBAEIZIEERAR EZH
fLLABf 2 NBe EMELASN 2 B AT
BEER eELfERR AEE
BER BREBERAGITIVEHRE
# o

T%@Jﬂ?&ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ\ﬁﬂ EBRTAE L
ERAT RBEMRBTEXSEN
AIEEE B W N AR 2 B B AT ) A (f

REBEERABZAFEZS) IA

SEZRECBRE -

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
exchange rate before tax in equity*
SMEEREH BRE AT R E R B
/(R &) /R 2) SR D)

% RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBF T ARBF T
5 1,398 =
) (1,398) -
5 430 —
(5) (430) —

HK$

*

Excluding retained profits

* T EERE &
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
closely monitored on an ongoing basis to minimise the
Group’s exposure to bad debts.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December 2019 and
2018. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts
for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2019

Bt R 3R R Y =

31 December 2019
RZE—-NF+_A=+—H

33. 2REAMEBEEAEERKE &)

S & b

AEBREZFILAEEBZF=ZOX
5 AEBZBRE  KIAEEBHERR
HGZEFPABBEERZERF -k
S AEBERHBET IR EKE
o BEREAKREZZERAR -

R 5 A B K AR R

TRETIRZZE—NLFERZZE—N\F
+Z A=+ HOBREAEEEFEER
R(EEERBANPER KRIEEM
EREESHEAZKNANE N TA
AESMNEEEZRREaEERRBI
MERBESE -T2 cEAS M
BEMERAAE-

R-ZZFE-h&E+=-ZA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=EAR
BEEER 2HAEBEERR

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-ER FoRR EZRR 5K (P73 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR¥TR ARBTR AR¥TR AR%¥Tn

Financial assets at fair value through BATEF AR MRS RS

other comprehensive income CRAEE 23,146 - - - 23,146
Financial asset at fair value through profit or B A FEFABENEREE

loss 27,456 = = = 27,456
Trade receivables* H 5 YRR = = = 13,571 13,571
Deposits and other receivables FRRE MBS

— Normal** — E&E" 47,774 = = = 47,774
Due from joint ventures YA ERNRRIE 3,733 - - - 3,733
Pledged time deposits BERTHES

— Not yet past due - R 80,000 = = = 80,000
Time deposits E B R

— Not yet past due - xEH 34,000 = = = 34,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBREZEN

— Not yet past due — K@ H 382,454 - - - 382,454

598,563 = = 13,571 612,134
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018

3. TRAMEERERBUEER

EEREREE)
= 5 A e R F AR R ()

RZF-NFE+-_A=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+-@AHE
HEEER ZHBEBEEEAR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-KEE g 24 E=RRER [EE| Rz B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARET:R
Financial assets at fair value through other ~ ZRAFEFAE iR A WM
comprehensive income SHEE 38,209 - - - 38,209
Trade receivables* Z 5 WA - - - 13,760 13,760
Deposits and other receivables T 3R B H At e W 3008
— Normal** - E&~ 64,888 - - - 64,888
Due from joint ventures [ X -WNE 2,696 - - - 2,696
Pledged time deposits BEATHER
— Not yet past due - K@ 80,000 - - - 80,000
Time deposits EHER
— Not yet past due - K@ 64,000 - - - 64,000
Cash and cash equivalents RBeRkBEEED
— Not yet past due - K@ 400,354 - - - 400,354
650,147 — — 13,760 663,907
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * MR AEERBETERENE

approach for impairment, information is disclosed in note 19

to the financial statements.

> The credit quality of deposits and other receivables

is

210

considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and
there is no information indicating that the financial assets had
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
loans and overdrafts, lease liabilities and obligations under
finance leases and trust receipt loans. The Group’s policy is
to maintain the Group at a net current asset position.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Bt R 3R R Y =

31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

33. ¢REAMEEEERRE®

ENE &

AEERAERAEEERYE S
TAEERESEBRNER ZTAZE
BEZPFEMTARSREE(WMES
FEWRIE) 2 BB R A R R B 2B X
ZTEHBRERE

AEEZBEERBREERRITERR
Ex HEREBELREHERELE
AURBES #RESHEEEE)
Mz 8 - AEEZBRE2ES
REBRENREEEFR MM

RIFERAR AEESHEENDE
HETERUTHELHRITIEARE
25T :

2019
—EB-NEF

On Less than Over
demand 12 months 1 to 5 years 5 years Total

RER 55 &
HE 12AXT 1ZE5F Kk et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
N N AR N N
T T T T T
Trade payables Z 5 e FRE - 68,908 - - 68,908

Other payables and accruals E ) FE A SR8 K FE T

A - 27,231 - - 27,231
Due to related companies FEARR & R A RIA 404 - - - 404
Interest-bearing bank borrowings RRERITREE 80,000 = = = 80,000
Lease liabilities HEAR = 117,920 252,983 11,891 382,794
80,404 214,059 252,983 11,891 559,337
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. eRIEMEEBERER &
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBELEREZ)
2018
—E-NF
On Less than Over
demand 12 months 1 to 5 years 5 years Total
REX 5HF
& 12@AMUT 158545 N E it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR AR AR AR AR
T T T T T
Trade payables B S ENHIE — 73,210 — — 73,210
Other payables and accruals E fh FE A FRE &
FE&T IR - 29,695 - - 29,695
Due to related companies R BER R 353 — — — 353
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITIEE 79,200 — - - 79,200
79,553 102,905 — — 182,458
Capital management EXEHE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management AEBEAEENTIEZEREAERE
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going FEBBRNFERLE THFER
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to MEALEUASFHHEERMESR
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. TR EE -
The Group manages its capital structure and makes AEBEEEEANEBY AR ELH
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions BHREREBEENRRS Y
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To HEELFABR RTHBIABRELRE
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may B AEETREARINS TFRENR
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital B MBRREEEARAAEZETHR
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were - BE_ZT-NF+_A=1+—H
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing ER—ZF-N\F+-A=t+—HLFE
capital during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 W HERERNBR  BER%BIEN
December 2018. REEEZ -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (Continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued capital and reserves as
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and risk associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance the overall capital structure of the Group
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well
as the raising of new bank loans.

Bt 75 Rk B &

31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H

3. eREAMEEEEREE#)

AAEE (E)

AEBNEAEBERERENRESE
ERARBHEBEAREREZ HAC
BITRANGER FEREE VB R
RWE -

ARRBEEEREHEAEE -FR
EHNTHEN B EFEEEEXR
RAREZENEAEBNRR - R
BEFNEZ A5EKEERER
B BIIHBROREERRTERF
BAREEBRENELLERE -
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RZE—NF+ZA=+—8H

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. AR TWEFEARR
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the REBARRRHREBROT BN
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: FEREHI AT

2019 2018
—E-hE ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREEF T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE

Investments in subsidiaries REE R AR E 7,097 7,097

Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE W Bf 88 7~ B) R IB 141,132 147,835

Total non-current assets ERBEELRT 148,229 154,932

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE

Other receivables and prepayments H th W SR IE R TR SRR 161 238

Cash and cash equivalents BekBeEE 1,217 720
1,378 958

CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE

Other payables H e 3R IE 80,239 79,448

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFEE (78,861) (78,490)

Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(afB)3E 69,368 76,442

EQUITY R

Issued capital BBEITRA 45,726 45,496

Reserves (note) () 23,642 30,946

Total equity R 69,368 76,442
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Bt 75 Rk B &

31 December 2019
—h&+ZA=+—H

34. QT BRR &)

Note: Mt
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARHEBZHMENOT
Share Exchange
premium fluctuation Retained
account reserve profits Total
ROHEE EXRSRE REBF st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETT ARBTT ARBFx
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF
—H—H 1,959 (2,283) 62,412 62,088
Profit for the year F W5 - - 95,290 95,290
Other comprehensive loss for 4 A H #f 2 & 5 18
the year:
Exchange differences on BMEIRINEB 2
translation of foreign fEHZE%
operations - (578) - (578)
Total comprehensive income FANRHERNBE -
for the year - (578) 95,290 94,712
Issue of shares under share BRI D B & &l
award plan TR 7,894 — — 7,894
Final 2017 dividend declared /)E T—EFRH
B3 - - (103,228) (103,228)
Interim 2018 special dividend *)\i AR ER R R
TR - - (30,520) (30,520)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZTE—NF+=A
1 January 2019 =+—HBRRZZ
—NF—HA—H 9,853 (2,861) 23,954 30,946
Profit for the year F 5 F) = - 105,228 105,228
Other comprehensive income £ A H 4 2 M U 25
for the year:
Exchange differences on MERINET 2
translation of foreign ENER
operations = 705 = 705
Total comprehensive income FANEE RN B -
for the year = 705 105,228 105,933
Issue of shares under share BRI D R EET &)
award plan BT 5,833 = = 5,833
Final 2018 dividend declared &k = F — /\ F K
B% B - - (86,940) (86,940)
Interim 2019 special dividend =& — J14 A Hi #F B
&5 - - (32,130) (32,130)
At 31 December 2019 RZZBE—-—NF+=
=+-—8 15,686 (2,156) 10,112 23,642
35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 35. HLEMBIHME
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for KB BEROEEETER _TE_FF

issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2020.

ZAZTH#ERKERN -
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- AEERZOAETRFENEEHME - U

controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, REE BERFERER  DEEEHEHN
as extracted from the published audited financial statements is set HlEmrsEzBmE -
out below.
Year ended 31 December
BE+T-BA=+-HLHFE
2018 2017 2016 2015
—ZE-N\F ZZ—+F ZZE-—R"FE ZT—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETr AR®ETT ARETR
Revenue Iz 1,495,087 1,492,128 1,356,142 1,248,455 1,088,147
Other income and gain, H At A Je
net W %5 41,393 38,221 36,734 33,716 29,486
Cost of inventories ERETFERE
consumed (557,020) (551,109) (482,112) (463,580) (434,745)
Staff costs BTIMA (472,265) (448,071) (383,611) (337,491) (302,455)
Depreciation of items of mE - BE K
property, plant and BBEEWE
equipment (47,121) (50,420) (51,095) (55,306) (57,200)
Depreciation of right-of-use {FAEEENE
assets (93,709) — — — —
Utilities and consumables A & 6 X
KB 7 o (81,707) (77,498) (71,347) (66,780) (62,515)
Rental and related expenses & M A8 @R X (25,607) (139,875) (122,078) (112,815) (117,226)
Other expenses H i i 2 (89,405) (89,722) (82,756) (92,990) (75,964)
Share of results of [Eih &% R A
joint ventures E (3,817) (3,803) (4,304) (6,961) (2,435)
Finance costs BE AR (27,707) (1,870) (1,038) (978) (509)
Profit before tax 75 Al s A 138,122 167,981 194,535 145,270 64,584
Income tax expense Frig R X% (45,276) (50,975) (61,349) (42,997) (15,995)
Profit for the year RE R F 92,846 117,006 133,186 102,273 48,589
Attributable to: FER:
Owners of the Company AR EHA A 91,283 115,173 131,329 100,992 48,589
Non-controlling interests JEE IR b 1,563 1,833 1,857 1,281 —
92,846 117,006 133,186 102,273 48,589
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Summary Financial Information

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

MBERBME

EE -BENRFERES

As at 31 December

R+=-HA=+—-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
- s ZE-N\F ZE—+F ZZE-X"F ZET-—1F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
N ARBTRT O ARETT ARETT ARETR
Total assets EEBE 1,142,629 893,063 889,659 773,464 699,417
Total liabilities BEBE (713,590) (390,430) (355,585) (294,157) (277,757)
Non-controlling interests A (5,146) (6,187) (3,438) (1,581) -
423,893 496,446 530,636 477,726 421,660
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AGM
BEBAEAE

Articles of Association

A EZAR

Audit Committee

EZEEE
Board
EEy

CCT Tenancy Agreements

CCTHE =&

Chiu Kwun

Company

ZANYNE]

Controlling Shareholders

Corporate Governance Code
P EEIRTA

218

annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 15 June 2020

ARRIBER - E_TFANA+THERBTZRRBFRE

articles of association of the Company adopted on 25 March 2011 and as
amended from time to time

ARRR-B——FZA-+AEBRMRETRIET 2 AR ERER

audit committee of the Company established on 25 March 2011 with written
terms of reference (as amended and supplemented)
ARAIRZE——F=ZA+THEBRIZEREZES
(K& 7T R 78)

HERAEMBERDE

board of directors of Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited

EE(hE)ERBRARESES

tenancy agreements entered into between the Group as lessee and Meco
Group or Dongguan Well Excellent (as the case may be) as landlord
AEBWEAEABANEESEEXIREAERFBEAME)EREF)FIL
OREN-ROE

Chiu Kwun Engineering (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd., a company established in the PRC

with limited liability on 4 April 1990 and indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. KU Hok

Chiu, being one of our executive directors and substantial shareholders

iﬁiﬁﬂ BRECRIARRAR  E-—NAWNTFHANBEPBEKILIZE
ERR ARMTEERTIERRGBBELRELEESR

Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited
EE(hE)IZERERA

Mr. CHAN Man Wai, Mr. YIP Shu Ming, Mr. KU Hok Chiu, Best Active
Investments Limited, Current Success Investments Limited and Bright Mind
Investments Limited collectively known as the Controlling Shareholders of the
Company

PRER A - ERIALEAE  HEBHB%E A Best Active Investments Limited -
Current Success Investments Limited & Bright Mind Investments Limited * £t &

BARNBER KRR

Corporate governance code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
AR R E14FT L 2 B SR A



CPPCC
B 1

Dongguan Well Excellent

BREFRIAE

Group
KEHE

HK Well Excellent

BRBE

Listing Date

FHEH

Listing Rules
LR Rl

Meco Group

Model Code

2 =7 B

Nomination Committee

T}:E%;z\ =

Glossary
Il

Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference

FEARBUR A & &

Dongguan Well Excellent Hotel Management Services Co., Ltd., a company
established in the PRC with limited liability on 27 October 2006 and wholly
owned by HK Well Excellent

REBEREEERBERAF  —KR_ETZRFTAZTLtBEPEK
THBERRD ﬂ'm§%$§i§%ﬁ

extraordinary general meeting

BREFRIAE

Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited, together with its subsidiaries
EE(hE)ERERAERENEB QA

Well Excellent Development Limited, an investment holding company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and owned as to 50% by Mr.
CHAN Man Wai, 35% by Mr. YIP Shu Ming, 15% by Mr. KU Hok Chiu
MEZRARAF —XREBIMALNERKREFTRAE - BARXESL
B ERBREERETEBEEDFIEAS0% - 356%K%15%

date on which the trading of the Company’s securities commenced, i.e. 19
April 2011
AARFEFRABEECRS -_E——FmWA+NA

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
Bt A2 P RE & AR Al

Meco Group Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability on 14 July 1992 and owned as to 50% by Mr. CHAN Man Wai,
35% by Mr. YIP Shu Ming and 15% by Mr. KU Hok Chiu

EREEBEERAR " KR - NMNZFtA+HBAEEETMAINBRRD
Al BHRXESELE  EBRBALEERETEBELEDBIEB50% - 35%K156%

Model code for securities transactions by directors of listed issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
EmARBMEI0E LM ETAZEFETESF RS 2 F ST

nomination committee of the Company established on 25 March 2011 with
written terms of reference

ARRR - E——F=—A-+HEARYZRELZEG HREEARELE
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Glossary
Il

Non-compete undertaking

TR F A
PRC
e

Prospectus
BRER

Remuneration Committee
¥FHEES®

SFO

& 7 M BB (5

Share Award Plan

P ) 22 B &t &

Share Options Scheme
B2

Share Subdivision

B tn 2 I

Stock Exchange
Bt 22 P

220

an irrevocable non-compete undertaking in favour of the Group pursuant to
which each of the Controlling Shareholders will not directly or indirectly, carry
on, invest in or be engaged in any business which would or may compete with
the business of the Group

MASEBEL 2 TR RMERHEFAR Bt SERRRSETSERAHEE
T REFNEFEMAREFBEXEREFRATRBET ZEB

People’s Republic of China
PEARKEAE

the Company’s prospectus dated 7 April 2011 for the initial public offering
ARAFEPHR-_T——FHALHZER A HAEERRER

remuneration committee of the Company established on 25 March 2011 with
written terms of reference

ARRMN - E——F A+ HAARUZFHNEZES HREEORELE

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
EREVESNEZBSF NP EGRN (BTRERT - R E MG &%)

share award plan adopted by the Company on 25 March 2011 (as amended or
supplemented)
RARARIRZE——F=ZAZ+HB (KBTS 7T) RN R ZE S

share option scheme adopted by the Company on 25 March 2011
RKRABRR - E——F=fF-_+HBERMNZERETE

the subdivision of the Company’s previous ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each
in the share capital of the Company (issued and unissued) into two(2) existing
ordinary share(s) of HK$0.05 each that was approved at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 4 June 2018 and became effective
on 5 June 2018

BREAARABRAPEROIOETZ EBER(BEBITRARET) DR AMQK
BESROSETZEBW  ER T N\FEANANBRTZEREEAS
REME UR_T-NFXARABER

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMERSMARRAA
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